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FACTS AT A GLANCE 

Fact Measure 

$2.75 billion Revenue 

$2.63 billion Expenditure 

$85.4 million NPAT 

$64.0 million Dividend 

$317.3 million Operational Subsidy 
Tariff Adjustment Payment  

~894,000 Number of residential customers 

~92,000 Number of small business customers 

~6 million Number of bills issued by Synergy 

~106,000 The average number of calls received each month by Synergy’s 
contact centre  

476 Number of staff employed by Synergy 

11,605 GWh Size of Synergy’s electricity portfolio 

65% Synergy’s share of the market in the South West Interconnected 
System 

42% Synergy’s share of contestable electricity market 

8% Synergy’s percentage of renewable energy 

~311,000 Customers on concessions 

92,356 Number of customers in Renewable Energy Buyback Scheme 

 

Figures current as at 30 June 2012 
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

It is a credit to the dedicated and committed team at Synergy that the board can 
report a much improved performance, particularly in the face of ongoing challenges 
in the energy industry. 

The team at Synergy has worked hard to ensure processes, systems and service 
levels improved. At the same time, they have maintained their focus on ensuring the 
business adapted to changes in the industry, both from competitive forces and 
government policy changes. 

As a government trading enterprise, Synergy is a somewhat complex organisation:  
we are owned by Western Australian taxpayers which in itself presents challenges 
with respect to shareholder expectations; we are operating in an aggressively 
contestable market competing with other retailers for the business of larger 
customers; we have an obligation imposed by the Electricity Corporations Act 2005 
to operate with prudent commercial principles; and in the face of increasing tariffs 
and other cost of living pressures, we face intense scrutiny for our treatment of 
customers experiencing financial hardship. 

Accordingly we strive to make a profit, taking into account that the subsidy we 
receive from the government is deemed revenue and without it we would make a 
loss. At the same time, Synergy is a unique retailer: we encourage our customers to 
use less of our product, not more. 

The challenge we face is that we enter into long-term electricity supply agreements, 
while entering into short-term contracts with customers, and therefore face a risk of 
stranded supply if we lose customers to our competition. 

Faced with these considerations, it is pleasing to acknowledge the terrific work of 
everyone at Synergy for the outstanding performance over the previous twelve 
months. 

Synergy recorded a profit after tax of $85.4 million.  While this profit is welcome, it 
was only through the treatment of the subsidy from the state of $317.3 million – 
making up the difference between current and cost-reflective tariffs – being treated 
as revenue that the profit was achieved. Without this subsidy, Synergy would have 
incurred a loss after tax of $136.7 million. A loss of this magnitude is not a reflection 
on Synergy's performance, rather it reflects the fact that our regulated tariffs are 
not cost-reflective and highlights the fact that our customers continue to be 
significantly subsidised by Western Australian taxpayers in order to keep tariffs 
lower than they otherwise would be. 

With the cost of electricity only destined to increase, the year ahead will pose 
challenges for our customers and therefore how we support those customers. In our 
business we see the effect of the two-speed economy in operation.   

Whether it is households, small and medium enterprises or larger industrial and 
commercial businesses, there are some customers who are comfortable managing 
the increased costs for their electricity use, while there are others who find the 
impact of cost increases a real challenge.  
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Moreover, many of our residential customers are working in industries dealing with 
economic uncertainty and their employers are facing increased input costs, thus 
creating the potential for a hardship cycle. 

Accordingly, we are committed to doing all we can to support our customers at all 
levels. We do this through various interactions: directly with our customers through 
hardship programs; by working with other utilities such as Western Power to 
educate and inform customers on ways to reduce their consumption; internally by 
reviewing our costs and maintaining an efficient operation; and through informing 
policy which may impact on our customers. 

Ensuring our business is efficient is, of course, a fundamental customer service as 
the costs of our operations are either borne by our customers or through the subsidy 
funded by Western Australian taxpayers, making up the difference between the 
revenue from current tariffs and the potential revenue if tariffs were cost-reflective.   

During the year the Economic Regulation Authority conducted an inquiry into the 
efficiency of Synergy’s costs and tariffs. Importantly, the Authority found that 
Synergy’s energy procurement, including procurement of renewable energy 
certificates, was efficient, an important finding considering energy procurement 
represents a significant portion of Synergy’s costs. However, the Authority also found 
Synergy’s actual operating costs sat above benchmark costs for the supply of 
retailer services.  

Synergy has put significant effort into reducing costs and is implementing plans to 
achieve the benchmark costs over the next two years. Improving customer service 
will be a key to this objective. By efficiently and effectively responding to the needs 
of customers, we create opportunities to reduce costs.  

A further challenge for Synergy is to retain existing customers and attract new ones 
in the very competitive large industrial and commercial electricity markets at a time 
when there is short-term oversupply. Oversupply in the market allows other 
competitors to use aggressive pricing strategies in order to gain market share.  This 
will be most important for Synergy in light of our large industrial customer market 
share falling from 73% in 2007 to around 42% today. 

On the other hand, Synergy has been successful in growing its gas business since 
contestable gas supply thresholds were reduced in July 2007. During the year, the 
board approved Synergy entering a new, significant gas supply contract with the 
Gorgon Joint Venture for 20 years, commencing in 2015. While this is a very 
significant and successful outcome Synergy acknowledges it will need to contract 
further long- and short-term gas supplies in order to support future growth in its gas 
business. 

The Synergy board is also appreciative of the efforts of everyone at Synergy to 
ensure compliance with the Clean Energy Future legislation and, importantly, to help 
prepare customers for the impact of the carbon price. This was a significant project 
with the legislative changes having a lasting impact. Synergy will continue to assist 
our customers’ transition through this period. 

In addition, we will monitor the potential for further legislative changes, such as to 
the mandatory renewable energy target, which may influence decisions with 
respect to short- and long-term power supply agreements. 
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During the reporting period, we welcomed two new board members, Eddy Buckovic 
and Jan Kolbusz. I want to thank them and my other colleagues on the board for 
their ongoing support and contribution to our important deliberations. We 
understand that our business touches the lives of many businesses and every 
household in our area of operations. 

Finally, I would like to acknowledge the outstanding efforts of our Chief Executive 
Officer, Trevor James, his executive and the whole team at Synergy. Together, they 
have committed 100% throughout the year and this is reflected in the results they 
have achieved as highlighted in this annual report. 

 

Michael Smith 
Chairman 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 

In reflecting on our performance over the previous twelve months it is important to 
commence by acknowledging all of my colleagues at Synergy for their commitment, 
hard work and customer focus during the 2011/12 year.  

The year began with a change to Synergy’s structure and the appointment of four 
new executives: Mr Donald MacKenzie General Manager Retail, Mr Karl Matacz Chief 
Financial Officer and General Manager of Business Services, Mr Alex Jones Chief 
Information Officer, and Mr Blair Stratton General Manager Strategy and Corporate 
Affairs. Two existing executives, Mr Will Bargmann and Mr Geoff Roberts, took the 
roles of General Manager Corporate Services and General Manager Energy Markets 
respectively. 

There was one fundamental focus associated with these changes: to significantly 
improve our focus on our customers.  For Synergy to retain the right to retail we 
must have a strong customer-focused culture that understands and delivers on 
community and commercial energy needs. 

To that end I have been pleased with the progress we have made in achieving this 
goal. It is well known that during the twelve months prior we were beset with issues 
associated with our billing system. This year we have put a rigorous effort into 
addressing these issues, stabilising our billing system and focusing on meeting the 
needs and expectations of our customers. Having completed these operational 
improvements, it is important we renew our focus on our customers and meeting 
their expectations. 

We have undertaken reviews of our rebates and concessions payments to ensure all 
customers are receiving the rebates and concessions to which they are entitled, and 
we have examined our systems and processes to ensure the protections afforded 
our life support customers are rigorous. We continue to monitor the performance of 
our systems, processes and service levels to ensure our customers receive the 
service they are rightly entitled to have.   

The cessation of the feed-in tariff caused a substantial increase in work in customer-
facing areas, including processing of applications. Importantly, it is evident that the 
feed-in tariff provided great support for the development of the solar industry in 
Western Australia and the cessation of the incentive did not spell the end of the 
industry. A further 33,665 households installed photovoltaic systems during 2011/12, 
with 14,469 households installing systems between January and June 2012 – well 
after the cessation of the feed-in tariff.  Over 92,000 households in the South West 
Interconnected System – or nearly ten percent of Synergy’s customers – are now 
generating their own electricity, reducing demand from large-scale generation and 
reducing the amount they are spending with Synergy. 

We have worked closely with the Economic Regulation Authority as part of their 
review of Synergy’s costs and electricity tariffs.  We are very mindful of our operating 
costs as they are ultimately borne by Synergy’s customers, and we have worked 
fastidiously to achieve the state government’s efficiency dividend, even identifying 
further savings beyond the dividend. 

Another major milestone during the year was to ensure compliance with the Clean 
Energy Future legislation which required a significant change program within 
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Synergy, affecting most areas of the business and requiring various changes to 
Synergy’s systems and processes.  The Clean Energy Future legislation is a complex 
legal instrument which ultimately affects every Synergy customer.  Moreover, due to 
the timing of the legislation passing through Federal Parliament, the project required 
a significant work program completed to a tight deadline and it is a credit to all 
involved at Synergy that the business was ready by 30 June 2012.  

Of course, a major impact of the legislation is the imposition of a price on carbon, 
which has increased the price of electricity over and above the tariff increases.  The 
latter have been driven by increased network, generation, renewable and other 
costs that make up the tariff. We are mindful of the impact these increases will have 
on our customers and the potential to increase financial hardship. We will therefore 
be maintaining a focus on supporting our customers as they make the necessary 
changes to accommodate these cost increases. 

In light of this – and the fact that average household consumption increased by over 
1,600KWh or 29% between 1996 and 2010 – Synergy has been actively engaged 
with Western Power in the Future Energy Alliance The Future Energy Alliance aims to 
encourage and affect behavioural change to reduce energy consumption and 
reduce the amount households spend on energy consumption. This campaign will 
be increasingly important if Western Australian taxpayers are to reduce the subsidy 
they pay Synergy for the difference between current tariffs and cost-reflective tariffs. 

This campaign, coupled with tariff changes, the proliferation of solar panel systems 
and milder weather, resulted in households reducing their energy consumption by 
nearly 5% in 2011/12, when compared to the previous year.  This was only the 
second time average household consumption had fallen since 1996, the other being 
in 2002 by just 0.4%.   

I am looking forward to the coming year being one in which we continue to improve 
customer service and, in so doing, identify further efficiency opportunities which 
benefit our business and ultimately our customers.   

I would like to finally thank the board for its support throughout the year, my 
colleagues on the executive and the wonderful team at Synergy for their hard work, 
commitment and dedication to the organisation and its success. 

 

Trevor James  
Chief Executive Officer 
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ABOUT SYNERGY 

Synergy’s core business is to service customers through the purchase and sale of 
energy; these activities will always form the foundation of Synergy’s business and 
strategy. 

Synergy markets approximately 65% of the electricity sold in the South West 
Interconnected System (SWIS) to households and business customers and has a 
significant share of the contestable gas load in the industrial and commercial 
market.   

The business carries this out with a workforce of approximately 476 people who 
possess appropriate knowledge and skills to assist customers and meet business 
needs. 

 

OUR VISION 

Synergy’s strategy is a function of its core business and is developed from Synergy’s 
statement of purpose: 

“Synergy will maintain its position as Western Australia’s largest energy 
retailer through procuring and selling electricity and gas to customers 
throughout the South West Interconnected System.” 

Synergy’s strategic vision builds upon its core business of procuring and selling 
energy, envisaging Synergy as “the leading, customer-focused provider of energy 
solutions”. 

Synergy’s underlying focus is on customer service and efficiently meeting the needs 
of its customers, particularly at a time of change in the energy industry beyond 
Synergy’s control. 

Synergy must strive to maintain a positive and trusting relationship with its 
customers, and ensure it is – not only nominally, but functionally – a customer 
focused energy retailer.  

 

SYNERGY’S VALUES 

Synergy’s values are embedded in the organisation.  The following describe 
Synergy’s organisational values upon which Synergy bases its reputation and the 
guiding principles upon which staff and business operate: 

• Enterprising: Enables the business to seize opportunities, move ahead, take 
the initiative, innovate and focus on being the experts in energy. Synergy 
supports a culture focused on the growth of the business, its people, the 
community, the environment and the State; 

• Quality Relationships: Ensure that Synergy focuses on establishing good 
relationships with each person with an interest in its business. Synergy 
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understands the importance of good relationships with customers, staff, 
stakeholders, the Government and community and the environment; 

• Spirit: Is an intrinsic quality to enable Synergy to approach work with 
enthusiasm and eagerness. It breeds a culture of initiative, interest and 
“giving things a go”; and 

• Integrity: Is the foundation that grounds the business. Synergy will keep its 
promises and build trust with customers and stakeholders. 

 

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITIES 

The principal functions of Synergy are defined in the Electricity Corporations Act 2005, 
the Electricity Industry Act 2004 and relevant regulations and codes.   

The functions of the corporation are to: 

i. supply electricity to consumers and services which improve the efficiency of 
electricity supply and the management of demand; 

ii. purchase or otherwise acquire electricity for the purposes of supplying 
electricity to customers; 

iii. provide ancillary services; and 

iv. acquire gas and supply it to consumers. 

It is also the function of Synergy to: 

i. use its expertise and resources to provide consultative, advisory or other 
services for profit;  

ii. develop and turn to account any technology, software or other intellectual 
property relating to the functions above;  

iii. manufacture and market any product relating to the functions above; or  

iv. exploit its fixed assets for profit so long as the proper performance of its 
functions are not affected.  

In performing its functions, Synergy must act with prudent commercial principles 
and endeavour to make a profit, consistent with maximising its long-term value. 

In carrying out its business, Synergy seeks to achieve an acceptable balance 
between the specific requirements established within its governing legislation, in 
particular to act with prudent commercial principles and maximise the long term 
value of the business, and the broader responsibilities as a government trading 
enterprise. 
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Financial Hardship assistance 

Synergy’s financial hardship policy, 'Keeping Connected', continues to provide 
valuable support to customers who face extreme financial hardship.  The policy was 
developed in association with representatives from WA's community sector and in 
accordance with best practice guidelines. Endorsed by the Western Australian 
Council of Social Services and the Financial Counsellors Association of Western 
Australia, Synergy’s financial hardship policy was created to provide an extra level of 
support to customers experiencing genuine financial hardship.  Synergy’s financial 
hardship policy is reviewed annually and this ensures it remains contemporary and 
meets the needs of Synergy’s most vulnerable customers. 

Ministerial Reporting 

In line with the accountability provisions of the Electricity Corporations Act 2005, 
Synergy has provided the Minister for Energy with a quarterly report, for each of the 
first three quarters of the 2011/12 financial year, and this annual report details the 
entire 2011/12 financial year.   

Each of the quarterly reports for the 2011/12 reporting period were submitted to the 
Minister no later than one month following the end of the preceding reporting 
quarter and included an overview of performance (including specific performance 
indicators) and highlights of important achievements. 

 

SYNERGY’S ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE 

Synergy’s business is structured around the customer, through three clear business 
segments – Energy Markets, Retail, and Strategy & Corporate Affairs – and enabling 
functions that support these business segments: Transformation and Technology 
(under the Chief Information Officer), Corporate Services (incorporating Human 
Resources) and Business Services (under the General Manager Business Services).  

The organisational structure has clearly delineated roles and responsibilities for each 
of the business segments. 

Synergy’s organisational structure 2011/12: 
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The key roles during the year of each department were as follows: 

Retail 

Retail assists Synergy’s customers through a variety of channels, and includes 
Synergy’s contact centre and e-channel and all back office customer operations 
including billing, credit management and resolution of more complex customer 
transactions.  

Energy Markets 

Energy Markets services Synergy’s contestable market customers, providing a suite 
of products and services to commercial electricity and gas customers within the 
SWIS, as well as the associated billing, accounts, account management and credit 
management services for this segment. 

Strategy and Corporate Affairs 

Synergy’s external engagement with policy makers, media and government, as well 
as strategic long term forecasting and procurement in relation to gas and electricity 
contracts, oversight of the $26.4 billion energy supply portfolio and organisational 
strategy is managed by the Strategy and Corporate Affairs department. 

Business Services 

The Business Services department provides Synergy with accounting services and 
financial oversight as well as building services ensuring Synergy has the 
infrastructure required to maintain its operations. 

Corporate Services  

Providing legal, regulatory, audit and human resource management services, the 
Corporate Services department supports all other departments within the 
organisation. 

Transformation and Technology 

The Transformation and Technology department provides and maintains the 
technology, systems and services required for Synergy’s operations and 
communications. 

 

REPORT ON OPERATIONS 

FINANCIAL 

Synergy recorded a profit after tax of $85.4 million, an improvement of $9.1 million 
on the previous year.  Revenue from sales of energy, including the Tariff Adjustment 
Payment, increased by 2.7% while the total cost of goods sold increased by 2.5%. 

Following a restructure of its contractual arrangements with the Emu Downs Wind 
Farm on 1 July 2011, Synergy has recognised its contractual entitlement to energy 



Synergy Annual Report – 2011/12 

 

‐  12  ‐ 

from Emu Downs as an asset on its balance sheet together with an associated 
liability for committed payments under the contract.  In addition to this contract 
Synergy has a committed energy portfolio of $26 billion at 30 June 2012.  This 
allows for increases to these commitments in order to meet the carbon tax 
obligations of electricity generators from 1 July 2012. 

In addition to the carbon tax liabilities passed through to Synergy from electricity 
generators, Synergy also has an obligation from 1 July 2012 to meet any residual 
carbon tax liabilities for natural gas emissions from the sale of gas to its gas 
customers. 

Net assets have increased by $28.2 million as a result of the profit after tax for the 
year and the payment of a dividend of $57.2 million in respect of the 2010/11 
financial year. 

OPERATIONAL 

Following a challenging year in 2010/11 arising from factors associated with the 
implementation of a new billing system, the business returned towards expected 
service levels in 2011/12. 

A clear indication of this was a 32% drop in complaints to the Energy Ombudsman, 
with a total of 2,281 complaints recorded.  Complaints related to credit 
management activities, billing issues, estimated meter readings and high accounts.  
Complaints provide Synergy with opportunities to improve its processes, as well as 
highlighting the ways in which Synergy can improve how it communicates with its 
customers. 

The number of incoming calls fell by 11.46%.  This is due to improved performance 
through changes to the billing system, as well as the suspension of the Feed-in Tariff 
scheme which had led to an increased number of calls during the previous financial 
year. 

The percentage of customer calls not answered within 30 seconds increased from 
22.9% to 25.1%, while the average waiting time before a customer spoke to an 
operator fell.  The commencement of a first call resolution initiative, which required 
additional training for all contact centre staff during the year, has adversely affected 
customer service in the interim.  Synergy’s first call resolution initiative is intended to 
improve customer satisfaction, reduce complaints and reduce transaction costs. 

YEAR IN REVIEW 

As a retailer of energy, Synergy’s operations affect every household and many 
businesses throughout the SWIS. 

The team at Synergy has worked hard to stabilise the billing system while 
implementing changes to the system to accommodate state and federal policy 
initiatives. 

A continuous improvement team has been established within the business to ensure 
appropriate and timely changes are made to systems and processes in order to 
meet customer expectations.   
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Changes to the Feed-in Tariff scheme were announced on 21 May 2011, with the 
scheme being suspended on 1 August 2011.  Synergy has worked closely with the 
former Office of Energy, and subsequently the Public Utilities Office, to address 
issues associated with administration of the scheme. 

A project was established to ensure compliance with the federal Clean Energy 
Future legislation, given the significance and complexity of the changes impacting 
all areas of Synergy’s operations.  Complying with the legislation impacted Synergy’s 
billing, customer communications, systems and processes, contractual reviews, and 
staff training.  The project took up significant resources within the business in order 
to be compliant with the legislation. 

Despite the Clean Energy Future Legislation being passed, the federal mandatory 
renewable energy target of 20% of renewable energy being supplied by 2020 has 
been maintained.  During the year, the construction of the Collgar Wind Farm was 
completed, for which Synergy receives all of the energy and associated renewable 
energy certificates. 

Gas supply is integral to meeting Western Australia’s energy needs, and Synergy has 
continued to achieve significant success in gas retailing.  Accordingly, Synergy 
successfully concluded negotiations to enter a domestic gas contract agreement 
with the Gorgon Joint Venture participants.  The contract will be vital to Synergy 
maintaining its successful activities in gas retailing.  

On 17 August 2011, the Minister for Energy launched Synergy’s ‘Powering WA’s 
future’ initiative at the 11th Energy in Western Australia Conference.  Synergy 
released a prospectus at the Conference, in which existing and intending generation 
participants are invited to make submissions outlining capability and business 
concepts.  The prospectus identifies Synergy’s expected need to contract for mid-
merit/peaking energy requirements, and renewable energy supplies, and to foster 
relationships with current and potential suppliers. 

As an energy retailer, Synergy must enter into long term procurement contracts 
while securing sales contracts of a short term nature.  While the business continues 
to review its long term energy needs, the Western Australian energy market has 
been in a position of oversupply, allowing other competitors to use aggressive 
pricing strategies in order to gain market share.  Synergy has been focused during 
the year on addressing these challenges in this competitive marketplace. 

Synergy acknowledges the importance of a reliable electricity supply to life support 
customers, and it undertook a thorough and wide ranging review of the processes, 
systems and regulatory obligations with respect to these customers.  The review 
took place following two separate incidents involving life support customers.  While 
Synergy has maintained robust processes previously, all retail business processes 
were reviewed to identify further safeguards to put in place for registered life 
support customers.   

Working with Western Power under the banner of the Future Energy Alliance, 
Synergy conducted a community engagement study with various households 
recruited to participate, in which the households undertook challenges to make 
behavioural changes to reduce their energy consumption.  This has resulted in a 
public education campaign highlighting the ease with which households can make 
simple changes to reduce their consumption.   



Synergy Annual Report – 2011/12 

 

‐  14  ‐ 

Synergy’s sponsorships during 2011/12 included Starlight Children’s Foundation, 
where Synergy is the largest sponsor of the Starlight Express Room in Princess 
Margaret Hospital, a fun space for seriously ill children and their families to enjoy 
during their treatments.  Synergy also sponsors the Synergy Parkland in Kings Park 
and Great Gardens where the community has the opportunity to participate in free 
Synergy energy efficiency workshops held throughout the year. 

Many staff at Synergy also volunteer their time participating in activities which 
support the WA community.  Synergy Spirit, a staff initiated program, supports 
charitable causes throughout the year through various internal fundraising activities. 
In 2011/12, the voluntary committee raised a combined $13,000 for Organ 
Donation & Foundation of WA and the Association of the Advancement of Brain 
Injured Children. 
 
The Synergy Spirit committee is dedicated to raising awareness about these 
important charities, ensuring that every dollar raised really does make a difference.  
 

 

THE YEAR AHEAD 

Synergy is ready to maintain its competitive position in the Western Australian 
market, which aligns to its statement of purpose to be WA’s largest energy retailer 
through the procurement and sale of electricity and gas throughout the SWIS.  
Synergy is dedicated to building market competitiveness, enhancing its capacity to 
compete through dynamic pricing, sales capability and proactive delivery. 

Synergy will also continue to diversify its energy portfolio to improve security of 
supply to its customers.  

Over the forthcoming year, Synergy will closely monitor the impact of the Clean 
Energy Future legislation and, in particular, speculation that the federal government 
may amend the mandatory renewable energy target, which would affect Synergy’s 
future procurement considerations.   

Support for customers will continue to be an ongoing focus for Synergy in light of the 
expectation that tariffs are likely to continue to increase. 

  

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW 

Synergy’s corporate Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) have been selected with the 
aim of allowing the shareholder, board and management to effectively monitor 
progress at a corporate level.  

Accordingly, the corporate measures do not reflect the detailed management 
requirements for measuring performance at an operational level. 

The KPIs used for monitoring Synergy’s corporate performance are based on the: 

• costs and relevance of providing the information on an ongoing basis; 
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• different information requirements of the organisation and the shareholder; 

• regulatory requirements; and 

• commercial sensitivity of the measures and the degree of exposure for those 
that could affect our competitive position. 

Operational Key Performance Indicators 

 2009/10 

 

2010/11 

 

2011/12 

Contact Centre Effectiveness 

Total number of calls received 1,257,153 1,439,432 1,274,463 

% of calls not answered within 30 
seconds from when a customer is 
connected 

23% 22.9% 25.1% 

Average waiting time before a call is 
answered (seconds) 44.1 40.2 35.2 

% of calls abandoned 3.1% 3.2% 3.1% 

Business Development and Innovation 

Number of customers utilising 
environmental products 

27,107 66,822 100,790 

-  NaturalPower  5,813 5,631 4,419 

-  EasyGreen  1,095 1,837 3,415 

-  REBS  19,536 58,691 92,356 

-  Earth Friendly 663 663 600 

Number of SmartPower customers  19,447 23,186 24,427 

Customer Service 

Number of disputes involving the 
Energy Ombudsman 1,924 3,367 2,281 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

The Synergy (Electricity Retail Corporation) board of directors presents its report for 
the period 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Role of the Board 

The board of directors is Synergy’s governing body and responsible to the Minister 
for Energy (the Minister) for its performance.  Subject to the Electricity Corporation 
Act 2005, the board has the authority to oversee the performance of the 
organisation’s functions, determine the policies and control the affairs of Synergy.  
The board’s central role is to set Synergy’s strategic direction and to oversee its 
management and commercial activities.  

Composition of the Board 

From 1 July 2011, the board of directors comprised four non-executive directors 
until 12 December 2011.  From 13 December 2011, the board of directors comprised 
six non-executive directors. 

DIRECTORS 

The names and details of the directors in office at any time during the period 1 July 
2011 to 30 June 2012 are: 

Michael Smith, FAICD, FIMC, FAIM, FAMI – Director and Chairperson (Age 58) 

Mr Smith is the Managing Director of Black House, which consults to a number of 
leading Australian companies.  He has held several chairman and director positions 
since he began his career. 

Mr Smith chairs the boards of iiNet and the Lionel Samson Sadleirs Group.  He is the 
State President and a national director of The Australian Institute of Company 
Directors, Deputy Chairman of Automotive Holdings, a director of 7-Eleven and a 
board member of Giving West.  

Mr Smith was formerly the chair and director of the West Coast Eagles, chair of the 
Perth International Arts Festival, and a director of Indian Pacific Ltd and Home 
Building Society. 

Mr Smith was first appointed Chairperson in March 2006 and his term expires in June 
2013. 

Eric Hooper BA (Business), MBA, FAICD – Director and Deputy Chairperson (Age 
54) 

Mr Hooper was appointed to the board as a non-executive director in March 2006.  
Mr Hooper is also a director of Ocean Gardens Inc, a director of RC Sadleir Pty Limited, 
and a consultant providing corporate finance advisory services.   

Mr Hooper’s term expires in 2015. 
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Mr Eddy Buckovic BSc (Hons) – Director (Age 46) 

Mr Buckovic was appointed to the board as a non-executive director in December 
2011.  Mr Buckovic has worked in a range of upstream and commercial roles with BP, 
Woodside and BHP Billiton in the oil and gas sector, and the wholesale energy 
markets across the eastern seaboard with TXU Australia. Mr Buckovic is currently a 
consultant providing technical and commercial advisory services to the oil and gas 
sector and utilities industries. 

Mr Buckovic’s term expires in 2013. 

Caryle Demarte PSM, BA, FAICD – Director (Age 64) 

Ms Demarte was appointed to the board as a non-executive director in March 2006.  
Ms Demarte is a director of Yarra Valley Water and Aurora Energy and has served as 
a Councillor of the Earth Resources Development Council, a director of TXU Australia 
Customer Services Pty Ltd, Energy and Water Industry Ombudsman of Victoria, 
Energy Retailers Association of Australia and VENCorp.   

Ms Demarte’s term expires in 2014. 

Mr Jan Kolbusz BSc, MIS, FAICD – Director (Age 50) 

Mr Jan Kolbusz was appointed to the board as a non-executive director in December 
2011. Mr Kolbusz is currently the Managing Director of Decimal Pty Ltd, and formerly 
the founding Chairman of Stripe Capital.  Mr Kolbusz was formerly the Chief 
Operating Officer of Sealcorp Holdings, Director of Consulting at Ernst & Young and 
previously with USA-based Baxter Travenol. 

Mr Kolbusz’s term expires in 2014. 

Margaret Seares AO, MA, PhD (UWA), FAICD – Director (Age 64) 

Dr Seares was appointed to the board as a non-executive director in September 
2010.  Dr Seares has served as Senior Deputy Vice Chancellor of The University of 
Western Australia, Chief Executive of the Western Australian Department for the 
Arts, and Chair of the Australia Council. 

Dr Seares is the chair of the Perth International Arts Festival and is a director of the 
Education Investment Fund, the National Research Infrastructure Council, the 
Council of Scotch College (WA), and the Telethon Institute for Child Health Research 

Dr Seares’ term expires in 2012. 

COMMITTEES 

Synergy operates three committees - human resources and remuneration 
committee (HRRC), audit and legal compliance committee (ALCC), and nominations 
committee (NC) – which consist of the following directors: 

• HRRC members – Margaret Seares (Chair), Michael Smith, Caryle Demarte and 
Jan Kolbusz. 

• ALCC members – Eric Hooper (Chair), Caryle Demarte, Michael Smith and 
Eddy Buckovic. 
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• NC – Michael Smith (Chair) and Eric Hooper. 

 

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEES   

Human Resources and Remuneration Committee 

The purpose of the committee is to assist the board to fulfil its corporate governance 
oversight responsibilities in relation to: 

• the remuneration and other terms and conditions of service of Synergy staff 
pursuant to Section 18(2) of the Act; 

• quality assurance relating to the integrity and probity of Synergy’s 
remuneration policies and practices;  

• quality assurance relating to occupational health & safety policies and 
programs; 

• succession planning and nomination of directors and the chief executive 
officer in accordance with Section 8(5) and Section 14(2)(a) of the Act; 

• review the performance and remuneration of the chief executive officer; and 

• review the remuneration of directors. 

Audit and Legal Compliance Committee 

The primary function of the committee is to assist the board in fulfilling its fiduciary 
duties and corporate governance and oversight responsibilities.  The committee 
achieves this role by overseeing: 

• the adequacy of the financial reporting, principles and policies, internal 
controls and procedures; 

• the integrity and quality of financial statements and the independent audit 
of those statements; 

• compliance with the relevant regulatory and legal requirements; 

• the internal audit function; 

• the identification and management of business risks by management; and   

• that Synergy aims to achieve best practice where appropriate. 
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Nominations Committee 

The primary function of the committee is to assist the board in reviewing board and 
committee composition, performance and succession planning. This purpose 
includes identifying, evaluating and recommending candidates for the board.  The 
committee achieves this role by overseeing: 
 

• the size and composition of the board and board committees; 
 
• the selection, appointment and retirement of directors; 

 
• the necessary and desirable competencies of directors; 

 
• board succession plans that maintain an appropriate balance of skills on the 

board and the periodic review of those plans; 
 

• a process for the evaluation of the performance of the board, non-executive 
board members and board committees; and 

 
• an induction programme for directors.  

 

DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS 

The number of meetings of the board (including meetings of committees) and 
number of meetings attended by each of the directors between 1 July 2011 and 30 
June 2012 are as follows: 

 Board Meetings Human Resources and 
Remuneration 
Committee 

Audit and Legal 
Compliance 
Committee 

 A B A B A B 
Michael Smith 11 11 4 4 5 6 
Eric Hooper 10 11 N/A N/A 6 6 
Caryle Demarte 9 11 2 4 5 6 
Margaret Seares 11 11 4 4 N/A N/A 
Jan Kolbusz 5 6 2 2 N/A N/A 
Eddie Buckovic 5 6 N/A N/A 3 3 
 
A Number of meetings attended 
B Number of meetings eligible to attend during the time the director held office during the year 

Corporate Governance Statement 

This statement outlines the principal corporate governance practices Synergy’s 
board followed during the reporting period 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012. 

Synergy is committed to acting responsibly, ethically and with the highest standards 
of integrity.  This requires sound corporate governance principles and practices to be 
adopted by the board and implemented with commitment throughout the business. 
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The Synergy board considers that its governance practices comply with the 
recommendations of the ASX Corporate Governance Council Best Practice 
Recommendations. 

1. Corporate governance at Synergy 

Synergy is committed to a high level of corporate governance and promoting a 
culture of spirit, integrity, being enterprising and having quality relationships. 

Synergy must comply with the Electricity Corporations Act 2005 (the ‘Act’) and other 
state and commonwealth laws. As a government trading enterprise, Synergy is not 
listed on the Australian Securities Exchange (‘ASX’), but seeks to comply, to the 
extent applicable and not inconsistent with the requirements of the Act, with the 
ASX Corporate Governance Principles. 

The ASX Principles require the board to consider the development and adoption of 
appropriate governance policies and practices founded on the ASX Principles. Details 
of Synergy’s compliance with the ASX Principles are set out below and in the 
compliance checklist found at the end of this statement. 

2. Board of Directors 

2.1 Board role and responsibilities (ASX Principle 1.1) 

As a statutory corporation, the respective duties and responsibilities of Synergy’s 
board, chief executive officer and executive officers are substantially set out in the 
Act. 

Subject to the provisions of the Act, the board has overall responsibility for 
performing the functions, determining the policies and controlling the affairs of 
Synergy. Its central role is to set Synergy’s strategic direction and to oversee its 
management and commercial activities. 

Synergy has a board charter detailing its role, powers, duties and functions. In 
addition to matters required by law to be approved by the board, the following 
matters are reserved to the board: 

• appointing the chief executive officer - subject to the Minister’s endorsement 
– and overseeing appointments of the chief executive officer’s direct reports; 

• providing strategic direction, approving policies and reviewing major 
decisions, including capital expenditure proposals; 

• approving budgets and monitoring senior executives’ and financial 
performance; 

• overseeing compliance with internal processes and regulatory requirements; 
and  

• assessing board performance to ensure the board’s effectiveness. 
 
Responsibility for the management of Synergy’s day-to-day operations is delegated 
to the chief executive officer, who is accountable to the board.  The board has also 
delegated a number of responsibilities to its committees. The responsibilities of 
these committees are detailed in section 3 of this report. 
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2.2 Board composition (ASX Principles 2.1, 2.2, 2.3 & 2.6) 

In accordance with the Act, the board must comprise not less than four and not 
more than six directors appointed by the Governor of Western Australia on the 
nomination of the Minister. In making nominations, the Minister is required to 
consult with the board. Where a vacancy occurs in the membership of the board, it 
may recommend a new candidate to the Minister. 

At the date of this report the board has six members, all of whom are non-executive 
directors. The names of the directors in office at the date of this report, the date 
they were first appointed, and their biographical details are set on pages 16 and 17 
of this annual report.   

The board considers all of the non-executive directors collectively bring the range of 
skills, knowledge and experience necessary to direct Synergy. 

In assessing the composition of the board, the directors have regard to the following 
criteria: 

• the chair and the deputy chair must be independent, non-executive, 
directors; 

• the role of the chair and the chief executive officer cannot be filled by the 
same person; 

• the majority of the board should comprise independent directors; and 

• the board should have the required blend of qualifications, experience and 
expertise. 

 
2.3 Director independence (ASX Principle 2.1 and 2.6) 

The structure and composition of the board is prescribed by the Act. The 
independence of directors is, therefore, not a matter entirely in control of the board. 
However, the board charter provides that in nominating candidate directors to the 
Minister, the board will have regard to the independence of prospective directors. 

The board charter further outlines the criteria to be considered in assessing director 
independence, which are based on the premise that a director, other than the chief 
executive officer, must be independent of management and free of any business or 
other relationship that could materially interfere, or could reasonably be perceived 
to interfere, with the exercise of the director’s unfettered and independent 
judgment. 

None of the non-executive directors is considered to have a business, or other, 
relationship that could materially interfere, or could reasonably be perceived to 
interfere, with the exercise of the director’s unfettered and independent judgment. 

2.4 Conflicts of interest 

Directors must keep the board advised, on an ongoing basis, of any interest that 
could potentially conflict with Synergy’s interests. The board has developed 
procedures to assist directors in disclosing potential conflicts of interest. 
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A director with an actual or potential conflict of interest in relation to a matter 
before the board is required to withdraw from the meeting while the matter is 
considered. 

2.5 Terms of appointment, induction training and continuing education (ASX 
Principles 1.1) 

Under the Act, a director holds office for such period, not exceeding three years, as is 
specified in the instrument of his or her appointment, and is eligible for 
reappointment. Periods of appointment will be structured to ensure approximately 
one-third of directors retire each year. 

The nominations committee oversees the establishment and implementation of an 
effective induction process for new directors and will review that process regularly. 
The induction process includes discussions with the chief executive officer, senior 
management and relevant external stakeholders and provision of information on 
key corporate and board policies and strategic plans. 

All directors are expected to undertake professional development to maintain the 
skills required to discharge their duties. Where this involves industry seminars and 
approved education courses, Synergy pays the cost, subject to the chair’s approval. 
In addition, where skill gaps are identified, directors will be provided with 
appropriate resources and training. 

2.6 Performance evaluation (ASX Principle 1.2, 1.3 & 2.5) 

The responsibilities of Synergy’s executive are well defined and documented through 
formal position descriptions, performance agreements and board-approved 
delegation of authority policies.  Synergy has also developed an extensive 
performance management system for evaluating the performance of senior 
executives. 

The HRRC reviews and makes recommendations to the board on the process for 
reviewing the performance of the chief executive officer. The chief executive officer’s 
performance is judged against the approved strategic plan and the corporate and 
personal key performance indicators established for the chief executive officer on an 
annual basis. The same process is adopted in the case of other senior executives, 
except that their performance is also judged against additional key performance 
indicators relating to their respective departments.  

The board and each of its committees periodically assesses its own respective 
performance. 

2.7 Board access to information and professional advice (ASX Principle 2.6) 

Directors have direct access to members of Synergy’s management and information. 

Directors may, in carrying out their duties owed to Synergy, seek external 
professional advice. They are entitled to reimbursement of all reasonable costs 
where a request for advice is approved by the chair. Where the chair proposes to 
seek external advice he or she will consult the deputy chair. 
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2.8 Directors’ remuneration (ASX Principle 8.2) 

The principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration of 
directors is detailed in the remuneration report of Synergy’s annual report.  The 
HRRC is responsible for, among other matters, assisting the board in establishing 
remuneration policies and reviewing their effectiveness. The remuneration of non-
executive directors is determined by the Minister. 

There are no schemes for retirement benefits, other than superannuation, provided 
for any non-executive director. 

2.9 Chair (ASX Principles 2.2 & 2.3) 

The board chair, Mr Michael Smith, is an independent non-executive director. Under 
the Act, the Governor appoints the chair and deputy chair from the non-executive 
directors on the nomination of the Minister. In compliance with the Act, the board 
chair and the chief executive officer are not the same person. The chair is 
responsible for leadership of the board, for the efficient organisation and conduct of 
the board’s function and for the promotion of relations between board members 
and between the board and management that are open, cordial and conducive to 
productive cooperation. The chair’s responsibilities are set out in more detail in the 
board charter. 

Mr Smith is also chair/director of the companies listed on page 16 of this annual 
report. The board considers neither his chairmanship of the companies listed, nor 
any of his other directorship commitments as listed, interfere with the discharge of 
his duties to Synergy. The board is satisfied he commits the time necessary to 
discharge his role effectively. 

2.10 Company Secretary  

Synergy’s company secretary is Mr Will Bargmann, who is also its general manager 
corporate services. The appointment and removal of the company secretary is a 
matter for decision by the board. The company secretary is responsible for ensuring 
that board procedures are complied with and governance matters are addressed. All 
directors have access to the company secretary’s advice and services. 

2.11 Board meetings (ASX Principle 2.6) 

The board meets at least eight times per year to address strategic issues and as 
needed to address urgent issues. Details of the number of board meetings and 
directors’ attendance at these meetings are set out on page 19 of this annual report. 

The board has adopted rules and procedures which govern the proceedings of board 
meetings in addition to the provisions in schedule 1 of the Act. 

Copies of board papers are circulated in advance of meetings. Directors are entitled 
to request additional information where they consider the information is necessary 
to support informed decision-making. 
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3. Board committees 

3.1 Committees, membership and charters (ASX Principles 2.4, 2.6, 4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 
4.4, 8.1 & 8.3) 

The board has established three committees to assist in the discharge of its 
responsibilities. These are: 

• the ALCC;  
• the HRRC; and 
• the NC. 

 
Each of the committees has its charter that describes its role and duties. The 
company secretary provides secretariat services for each committee. 

Minutes of all committee meetings are provided to the board and the proceedings of 
each meeting are reported by the respective committee chair at the next board 
meeting.  A director may attend committee meetings even if he or she is not a 
member of the committee. 

The number of committee meetings held during the year, and members’ 
attendances at the meetings of the ALCC and HRRC are set out on page 19 of this 
annual report. 

3.2 Audit and Legal Compliance Committee (ASX Principles 4.1, 4.2, 4.3 & 4.4) 

The role and membership of the ALCC is detailed on page 18 of this annual report. 

3.3 Human Resources and Remuneration Committee (ASX Principles 2.4, 2.6, 8.1 
& 8.3) 

The role and membership of the HRRC is detailed on page 17 of this annual report. 

3.4 Nominations Committee (ASX Principles 2.4, 8.2) 

The role and membership of the NC is detailed on page 18 of this annual report. 

4. Promoting responsible and ethical behaviour 

4.1 Code of conduct (ASX Principles 3.1 & 3.3) 

The board has also approved a code of conduct setting out minimum standards of 
conduct for all officers and employees of Synergy, as well as a legislative and 
regulatory compliance policy and a conflict of interest policy. The code of conduct 
outlines Synergy’s position on a range of ethical and legal issues and summarises its 
policies on matters such as compliance with laws, occupational health and safety, 
corporate opportunity, confidentiality, protection of corporate assets and diversity in 
the workplace and responsibility for the environment. 

The codes of conduct and the policies: 

• guide compliance with Synergy’s legal and other obligations to its 
stakeholders, including the Minister and the government, employees, 
customers, the community, unions and regulatory authorities; and 
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• are designed to reflect Synergy’s commitment to appropriate corporate 
practices. 

 
Compliance with the principles contained within these documents will also assist 
Synergy in effectively managing risks and meeting its legal and compliance 
obligations. Synergy also has a public interest disclosure policy, the details of which 
are detailed in this report.  

4.2 Ownership and dealing in securities (ASX Principles 3.2) 

Synergy is not a listed entity and has no transferable securities. The potential for 
issues in relation to trading in other companies’ shares while in possession of inside 
information is addressed in the statutory duties contained in the Act and further 
explained in an outline of the duties and obligations of directors and executive 
officers, a copy of which is provided to all directors and officers of Synergy. Synergy’s 
conflict of interest policy also highlights the potential for issues to arise in this regard. 

5. Shareholder 

5.1 Shareholder communication (ASX Principles 6.1 & 6.2) 

The Minister for Energy is the only shareholder of Synergy. As Synergy’s governing 
body, the board is responsible to the Minister for its performance. The Minister has 
various rights set out in the Act in relation to certain aspects of Synergy, such as 
board nominations, approvals for certain transactions and access to information 
about Synergy. 

The Act also imposes certain reporting obligations on Synergy. It must produce a 
strategic development plan (SDP) and a statement of corporate intent (SCI) each 
year. The SDP sets out Synergy’s five-year economic and financial objectives, 
strategic result areas and associated performance targets, as well as strategies. The 
SCI sets out Synergy’s scope of activities, objectives and performance targets for the 
coming financial year and is consistent with the SDP. The SCI is tabled in Parliament 
after it has been agreed with the Minister and has received the Treasurer’s 
endorsement. 

In addition: 

• Synergy provides quarterly and annual written reports to the Minister 
detailing its performance and progress made in fulfilling the agreed targets 
set in the SCI. 

• the Minister and the board must, at the request of either, consult on any 
aspect of Synergy’s operation.  

 
5.2 Continuous disclosure and market communications (ASX Principles 5.1 & 
5.2) 

Synergy is not a listed company and is not subject to disclosure obligations under 
the ASX Listing Rules. However, the Act imposes requirements on Synergy to report 
on a range of matters to the Minister. 
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6. Financial reporting (ASX Principles 7.3) 

The Act requires the board to declare annually that Synergy’s financial statements 
give, in all material respects, a true and fair view of its financial position and that its 
financial condition and operating results are in accordance with relevant accounting 
standards. 

The chief executive officer and the chief financial officer have assured the board that 
Synergy’s financial reports present a true and fair view, in all material respects, of its 
financial condition and operational results and are in accordance with relevant 
accounting standards and that such declaration is founded on a sound system of 
risk management and internal control and that the system is operating effectively in 
all material respects in relation to financial reporting risks. 

7. External auditor relationship (ASX Principle 4.4 & 6) 

The Act requires Synergy’s financial statements to be audited by the Office of the 
Auditor General (OAG) by 30 September each year. The OAG also reports to the 
Minister on whether he or she is of the opinion that the financial report is in 
accordance with the Act. 

The ALCC oversees communications between the board, senior financial 
management, legal, regulatory and audit group, business services department and 
the OAG to ensure all assistance necessary to complete the audit by the Auditor 
General is provided.  

Synergy does not have control over the appointment (or selection) of the external 
auditor. This matter is prescribed by the Act. 

8. Risk management (ASX Principles 7.1& 7.2) 

Synergy has a comprehensive framework to manage its strategic, operational, 
regulatory and reporting risks. The corporate risk management policy sets out a 
methodology and process for identification of risks, outlines the accountabilities of 
management and contains procedures for reporting on risk issues throughout 
Synergy.  

Synergy’s executive and management are responsible for identifying risks and 
implementing strategies to mitigate them. The ALCC oversees the risk management 
framework and reviews the effectiveness of key mitigation strategies. Risk reviews 
are conducted at least annually to ensure emerging risks, such as those from 
changes in market structure and design, organisational restructures and operational 
issues are identified and responses developed. 

The chief executive officer and the chief financial officer have assured the board that 
Synergy’s management of its material business risks is effective.  In accordance with 
the Act, the business services department makes recommendations to the board on 
the appropriate level of insurance cover for Synergy. Financial risk issues are 
managed through a treasury policy statement that requires reporting to the ALCC 
on treasury activities. 
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Corporate Governance Checklist 

Although it is not a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange and as 
such is not subject to the ASX Listing Rules, Synergy has voluntarily chosen to 
comply with the principles and recommendations of the ASX Corporate Governance 
Council in the most recent edition of its ASX Corporate Governance Principles and 
Recommendations (ASX Principles), where appropriate and relevant in Synergy’s 
circumstances. 

The following checklist reports on the extent to which Synergy has complied with 
the ASX Principles and explains the reasons for any non-compliance. This table 
cross-references to various sections of the corporate governance disclosure 
statement contained within this annual report. 

ASX PRINCIPLE Comply Reference 
Principle 1 Lay Solid foundations for management and oversight   
1.1 Establish the functions reserved to the board and those delegated to 

senior executives and disclose those functions  
2.1, 2.5 

1.2 Disclose the process for evaluating the performance of senior executives  2.6 
1.3 Provide the information indicated in the guide to reporting on ASX Principle 

1  
2.6 

Principle 2 Structure the Board to add value   
2.1 A majority of the board should be independent directors  2.2, 2.3 
2.2 The board chair should be an independent director  2.2, 2.9 
2.3 The roles of the board chair and chief executive officer should not be 

exercised by the same individual  
2.3, 2.9 

2.4 The board should establish a nomination committee See Note 1 3.1 
2.5 Disclose the process for evaluating the performance of the board, its 

committees and individual directors  
2.6 

2.6 Provide the information indicated in the guide to reporting on ASX Principle 
2  

2.2, 2.3, 2.7, 
2.11, 3.1, 
3.3 

Principle 3 Promote ethical and responsible decision-making   
3.1 Establish a code of conduct and disclose the code or a summary of the 

code as to: 
3.1.1  the practices necessary to maintain confidence in the company’s 

integrity; 
3.1.2   the practices necessary to take into account Synergy’s legal 

obligations and the reasonable expectations of its stakeholders 
3.1.3 the responsibility and accountability of individuals for reporting and 

investigating reports of unethical practices. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

4.1 

3.2 Establish a policy concerning trading in company securities by directors, 
senior executives and employees and disclose the policy or a summary of 
the policy 

See Note 2 
4.2 

3.3 Provide the information indicated in the guide to reporting on ASX Principle 
3  

4.1 

Principle 4 Safeguard integrity in financial reporting   
4.1 The board should establish an audit committee  3.1, 3.2 
4.2 Structure the audit committee so that it consists of: (i) only non-executive 

directors; (ii) a majority of independent directors; (iii) an independent chair, 
who is not the board chair; and (iv) at least 3 members. 

 
3.1, 3.2 

4.3 The audit committee should have a formal charter  3.1, 3.2 
4.4 Provide the information indicated in the guide to reporting on ASX Principle 

4 
Note 3 3.1, 3.2 

Principle 5 Make timely and balanced disclosure   
5.1 Establish written policies designed to ensure compliance with ASX Listing 

Rule disclosure requirements and to ensure accountability at a senior 
executive level for that compliance and disclose those policies or a 
summary of those policies 

Note 4 

5.2 

5.2 Provide the information indicated in the guide to reporting on ASX Principle 
5 

Note 4 5.2 

Principle 6 Respect the rights of shareholders   
6.1 Design a communications policy for promoting effective communication 

with shareholders and encouraging their participation at general 
meetings and disclose the policy or a summary of the policy. 

 
5.1, 5.2 

6.2 Provide the information indicated in the guide to reporting on ASX 
Principle 6  

5.1, 5.2 
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Principle 7 Recognise and manage risk   
7.1 Establish policies for the oversight and management of material business 

risks and disclose a summary of those policies.  
8 

7.2 The board should require management to design and implement the risk 
management and internal control system to manage Synergy’s material 
business risks and report to it on whether those risks are being managed 
effectively. The board should disclose that management has reported to it 
as to the effectiveness of Synergy’s management of its material business 
risks 

 

8 

7.3 The board should disclose whether it has received assurance from the 
chief executive officer and the chief financial officer that the declaration 
provided in accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act is 
founded on a sound system of risk management and internal control and 
that the system is operating effectively in all material respects in relation 
to financial reporting risks. 

 

6, 8 

Principle 8 Encourage enhanced performance   
8.1 The board should establish a remuneration committee. 

  
3.1, 3.3 

8.2 Clearly distinguish the structure of non-executive directors’ remuneration 
from that of executive directors and senior executives  

2.8 

8.3 Provide the information indicated in the guide to reporting on ASX 
Principle 8  

3.1, 3.3 

 

Notes: 

1. While Synergy has established a Nomination Committee, it does not fully comply with recommendation 2.4 of the ASX 
Principles given the size and nature of the Synergy board, and the fact the board is ultimately determined by the Governor 
(on recommendation from the Minister). 

2. ASX Principle 3.2 has no relevance to Synergy as it is not a publicly listed entity (see section 4.2 of the corporate 
governance statement). 

3. The independence of committee members is influenced by the process of appointment of the directors to the board by 
the Governor and, therefore, the committee may not always have a majority of independent members. However, it 
currently does have the required majority. Under the Act, Synergy’s external auditor is the WA Auditor General. Therefore, 
recommendations in the ASX Principles as to independence and evaluation of the external auditor are not relevant. 

4. ASX Principle 5 has no relevance to Synergy as it is not a publicly listed entity and therefore is not subject to the ASX 
Listing Rules (see section 5.2 of the corporate governance report). 

Remuneration Report 

Principles Used to Determine the Nature and Amount of Remuneration 

Remuneration approval protocols are as follows: 

• Specified non-executive directors:  The Minister for Energy approves the 
remuneration of all non-executive directors.   

• Chief executive officer:  The board subject to the concurrence of the Minister 
for Energy approves the remuneration of the chief executive officer. 

• Specified executive officers:  The board on recommendation of the chief 
executive officer approves the remuneration of all specified executive officers. 

The remuneration policy is to: 

• remunerate individuals in accordance with performance and responsibility; 

• ensure consistent decision making on individual remuneration adjustments; 

• establish flexible remuneration arrangements; and 

• establish and maintain salary ranges comparable to other companies of 
similar size and industry. 
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Specified non-executive directors  

A non-executive director is to be paid out of the funds of the corporation such 
remuneration and allowances as are determined in the case of that director by the 
Minister.  

Remuneration 

The remuneration of directors and key management personnel is detailed in the 
Financial Statements. 

 

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE DISCLOSURES 

Service Agreements 

It is Synergy’s policy that contracts of employment for key managers excluding the 
executive are unlimited in term but generally these contracts are capable of 
termination by the key managers on four weeks’ notice and Synergy retains the 
right to terminate the contract immediately by making payment equal to a 
maximum of 87 weeks pay in lieu of notice. The key managers are also entitled to 
receive on termination of employment their statutory entitlements of accrued 
annual and long service leave, together with any superannuation benefits. 

The chief executive officer has a contract of employment that commenced on 1 
April 2011 with Synergy. The contract specifies the duties and obligations to be 
fulfilled by the chief executive officer.  The chief executive officer’s contract of 
employment terminates on 31 March 2013.  At any time prior to this date, the 
contract can be terminated providing 26 weeks’ notice by either party. 

All contracts provide for no entitlement to termination payments in the event of 
termination for serious misconduct. 

Emolument of Key Management Personnel  

The nature and amount of each element of the emolument for key management 
personnel during 2010/11 and 2011/12 are detailed in the attached Financial 
Statements.  

Indemnification of Directors and Officers 

The board has approved a directors and officers liability insurance policy to ensure 
the directors and officers of the Corporation have adequate coverage.  

The cover, which costs $27,900 per annum, will pay on behalf of Synergy, or 
directors and officers of Synergy, losses arising from a claim or claims made against 
them jointly or severally during the period of insurance by reason of any wrongful 
act (as defined by the policy) in the capacity of director or officer of Synergy. 

At the date of this report no claims have been made against the directors and 
officers component of the policy. 
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Review of Operations 

The operations of Synergy during the financial year and the results of those 
operations are discussed in the chairman’s report, the chief executive officer’s report 
and the review of operations. 

Change in State of Affairs 

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of Synergy during the 
financial year. 

Principal Activities 

The functions of Synergy are detailed under Synergy’s Corporate Responsibilities. 

Likely Developments and Expected Results of Operations 

Synergy will continue to monitor changes to state and federal policies and 
legislation which may impact Synergy’s operations, and make any requisite changes.   

Ministerial Directions 

No Ministerial Directions were received by Synergy during the year. 

Observance of the Code of Conduct  

Section 33 of the Electricity Corporations Act 2005 (the Act) requires the board of 
Synergy to provide to the Minister, at the same time as delivering its Annual Report, 
a separate report on the observance of its Code of Conduct by members of staff.  
The board confirms, consistent with section 31 of the Act, Synergy’s Code of Conduct 
was developed after consultation with the Commissioner for Public Sector Standards 
and was adopted by the board at its meeting on 23 February 2009. 

The Code of Conduct has been made available to all employees of Synergy and is 
available on Synergy’s Intranet for employee reference.  The board, under delegated 
authority, assign accountability through the chief executive officer to formal leaders 
in the organisation to ensure observance of the standards of conduct and integrity 
by members of staff. 

As at 30 June 2012, there were no reported incidents of staff members breaching 
the requirements of the Code of Conduct. 

State Records Act 2000 

Synergy maintains and supports quality record-keeping practices in its day-to-day 
business activities.  All records are managed according to the requirements of the 
State Records Act 2000 and Synergy’s approved record keeping plan.  Regular 
reviews are conducted of the corporate record-keeping systems and practices to 
ensure their efficiency and effectiveness.  New employees and contractors are 
provided with information on the record-keeping systems both at induction and at 
training in the use of the system.  The training programs are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis to ensure they reflect any new business requirements. 
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Western Australian Electoral Act 1907 

In accordance with the requirements of Section 175ZE of the Western 
Australian Electoral Act 1907, the following information in respect to 
expenditures (excluding GST) incurred by, or on behalf of, Synergy 
during the period 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012 was: 

• Advertising agencies: $744,540 - Cubed, 303 

• Market research organisations: $583,895 – Synovate Pty Ltd, Taylor Nelson, 
Painted Dog, David Reid 

• Direct mail organisations:  $54,580 – Australia Post, Salmat 

• Media advertising organisations: $520,985 – Market United 

• Total expenditure was $1,904,000 
 

The above expenditure does not include Synergy's contribution to the 
Future Energy Alliance (FEA) as part of the State Government’s Switch to 
the Future energy saving campaign. The following information regarding 
expenditure incurred by, or on behalf of, Synergy for FEA purposes 
during the period of 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012 was: 

• Advertising agencies: $481,499 – 303 Advertising Pty Ltd, Market United 

• Market research organisations: $579,423 - Taylor Nelson, 303 Advertising Pty 
Ltd, Media Decisions 

• Direct mail organisations: $34,551 - 303 Advertising Pty Ltd 

• Media advertising organisations: $195,527 – Media Decisions 

• Total expenditure was $1,291,000 
 

Public Interest Disclosure 

The Public Interest Disclosure Act came into effect 1 July 2003.  This facilitates the 
disclosure of public interest information and provides protection for those making 
such disclosures and those who are subject to such disclosures. Synergy is 
committed to the aims and objectives of the Public Interest Disclosure Act. 

In May 2006, a set of procedures was developed which outlined the manner in 
which Synergy will comply with its obligations under the Public Interest Disclosure 
Act.  Public Interest Disclosure information is included in Synergy’s induction 
program, procedures and staff information is posted on our intranet facility for staff 
to view.  Synergy has appointed the chief executive officer, the company 
secretary/general counsel, manager human resources and organisational 
development and the manager internal audit as public interest disclosure officers. 

There were no disclosures made during 2011/12. 
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Disability Access Disclosure 

Synergy is committed to ensuring people with disabilities, their families and carers 
have equal access to our services and information.  

In accordance with the Disability Services Act 1993, Synergy has developed a 
Disability Access and Inclusion Plan, which outlines various strategies with a purpose 
of improving access to services, premises and information.  

The Disability Access and Inclusion Plan was created in consultation with key 
stakeholders and in the plan's implementation a working group was developed to 
oversee and monitor the overall execution of the plan's objectives.  

The Disability Access and Inclusion Plan has six objectives, which include:  

• The same opportunities as other people to access the services of, and any 
events organised by, a public authority.  

• The same opportunities as other people to access the buildings and facilities 
of a public authority.  

• Receive information from a public authority in a format that will enable them 
to access the information as readily as other people are able to access it.  

• Receive the same quality and level of service from the staff of a public 
authority as other people receive from the staff of that public authority.  

• The same opportunities as other people to make complaints to a public 
authority.  

• The same opportunities as other people to participate in any public 
consultation by a public authority. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
 
To the Parliament of Western Australia 
 
ELECTRICITY RETAIL CORPORATION 
 
I have audited the financial report of the Electricity Retail Corporation. The financial report 
comprises the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2012, the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the 
year then ended, Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information, and the Directors’ Declaration. 
 
Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report 
The directors of the Electricity Retail Corporation are responsible for the preparation of the 
financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards and the Electricity Corporations Act 2005, and for such internal control as the 
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Electricity Corporations Act 2005, my responsibility is to express an opinion 
on the financial report based on my audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with 
Australian Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical 
requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material 
misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the Corporation’s preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial report. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Independence 
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor 
General Act 2006 and Australian Auditing Standards, and other relevant ethical requirements. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the financial report of the Electricity Retail Corporation is in accordance with 
schedule 4 of the Electricity Corporations Act 2005, including: 
 (a) giving a true and fair view of the Corporation’s financial position as at 30 June 2012 

and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and 
 (b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 

2001.
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Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Report  
This auditor’s report relates to the financial report of the Electricity Retail Corporation for the 
year ended 30 June 2012 included on the Corporation’s website. The Corporation’s directors 
are responsible for the integrity of the Corporation’s website. I have not been engaged to report 
on the integrity of the Corporation’s website. The auditor’s report refers only to the financial 
report described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may 
have been hyperlinked to/from this financial report. If users of the financial report are 
concerned with the inherent risks arising from publication on a website, they are advised to 
refer to the hard copy of the audited financial report to confirm the information contained in this 
website version of the financial report. 
 

 
COLIN MURPHY 
AUDITOR GENERAL 
FOR WESTERN AUSTRALIA 
Perth, Western Australia 
29 August 2012 
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2012 

Electricity Retail Corporation (trading as Synergy) - 1 

  
 
 

30/06/12 30/06/11
Note $'000 $'000

Revenue 3 2,416,563                       2,380,201                       

Other Revenue 4 330,177                           294,112                           

Cost of Sales 5 (2,464,096)                      (2,403,055)                      

Employee Benefits Expense 6 (45,566)                            (39,360)                            

Finance Costs 6 (8,877)                            (1,180)                             

Materials & Services 6 (76,916)                            (81,091)                            

Depreciation & Amortisation 6 (13,406)                            (9,407)                              

Other Expenses 6 (16,910)                            (30,044)                            

Profit Before Income Tax Equivalent Expense 120,969                        110,176                         

Income Tax Equivalent Expense 7 (35,588)                            (33,855)                            

Profit After Income Tax Equivalent Expense 85,381                          76,321                           

Other Comprehensive Income

Revaluation of available for sale financial assets 11 36                                   -                                       

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 85,417                            76,321                            

 
 
 
 
 
The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
 



 
 
 

 
  

Statement of Financial Position 
As at 30 June 2012 

Electricity Retail Corporation (trading as Synergy) - 2   

 
 

30/06/12 30/06/11
Note $'000 $'000

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 212,889                         121,260                         
Receivables 9 363,597                         475,710                         
Intangible Assets 10 78,842                           45,005                           
Inventories (at cost) 11,308                           18,048                           
Financial Assets 11 5,035                              16,480                           
Other Assets 12 1,468                              1,483                              

Total Current Assets 673,139                         677,986                         

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment 13 72,409                           11,554                           
Intangible Assets 10 38,848                           39,160                           
Financial Assets 11 2,372                              14,373                           
Other Assets 12 21,127                           22,515                           
Deferred Tax Assets 15 39,078                           25,640                           

Total Non-Current Assets 173,834                         113,242                         

Total Assets 846,973                         791,228                         

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables 14 353,786                         402,440                         
Current Tax Liabilities 15 1,490                              24,294                           
Provisions 16 6,675                              5,036                              
Finance Lease Liabilities 17 2,709                              -                                      

Total Current Liabilities 364,660                         431,770                         

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables 14 7,590                              -                                      
Deferred Tax Liabilities 15 23,656                           2,600                              
Provisions 16 31,229                           25,656                           
Finance Lease Liabilities 17 60,460                           -                                      

Total Non-Current Liabilities 122,935                         28,256                           

Total Liabilities 487,595                         460,026                         

NET ASSETS 359,378                         331,202                         

EQUITY
Contributed Equity 136,560                         136,560                         
Fair Value Reserve 36                                   -                                      
Retained Earnings 222,782                         194,642                         

TOTAL EQUITY 359,378                         331,202                         

 
 
 
 
 
The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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30/06/12 30/06/11
Note $'000 $'000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers 2,408,901                 2,385,365                 
Interest Received 9,106                         8,522                         
Other Operating Receipts 392,505                    295,512                    
Energy Purchases and Network Access Costs (2,471,855)                (2,517,006)                
Payments to Employees and Suppliers (147,108)                   (94,691)                     
Interest Paid (4,376)                        (28)                             
Lease Expenses (2,880)                        (1,884)                        
Income Tax Equivalent Payments (50,773)                     (35,249)                     

NET CASH FLOWS FROM / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 22 133,520                    40,541                      

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Investments 23,481                       18,000                       
Payment for Plant and Equipment (335)                           (6,336)                        
Payment for Intangible Assets (6,520)                        (945)                           
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment -                                 4                                 

NET CASH FLOWS FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 16,626                      10,723                      

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends Paid (57,241)                     (73,291)                     
Proceeds from Borrowings -                                 80,000                       
Repayment of Borrowings -                                 (80,000)                     
Customer and Contractor Deposits 1,262                         160                            
Upfront Receipt for Finance Lease Arrangement -                                 8,000                         
Payment of costs related to Finance Leases (2,538)                        -                                 

NET CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (58,517)                     (65,131)                     

NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH AND AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 91,629                       (13,867)                     

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 121,260                    135,127                    

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 8 212,889                    121,260                    

 
 
 
The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 
 
 

 
 

  

Statement of Changes in Equity 
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Note
Retained 
Earnings

Fair Value 
Reserve

Contributed 
Equity Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Balance as at 1 July 2010 191,612               -                           136,560          328,172            

Profit after tax for the year 76,321                  -                           -                      76,321              

Other comprehensive income

-                            -                           -                      -                         

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 76,321                 -                           76,321              

Transaction with owners recognised in Equity

Dividends (73,291)                -                           -                      (73,291)             

Total Transactions with owners (73,291)                -                           -                      (73,291)            

Balance as at 30 June 2011 194,642               -                           136,560         331,202           

Balance as at 1 July 2011 194,642               -                           136,560         331,202            

Profit after tax for the year 85,381                 -                           -                      85,381              

Other comprehensive income

Revaluation of available for sale financial assets -                            36                        -                      36                      

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 85,381                 36                        85,417             

Transaction with owners recognised in Equity

Dividends (57,241)                -                           -                      (57,241)             

Total Transactions with owners (57,241)                -                           -                      (57,241)            

Balance as at 30 June 2012 222,782               36                        136,560         359,378           

 
 
 
 
The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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1 CORPORATE INFORMATION 

The financial statements of Electricity Retail Corporation trading as Synergy for the year ended 30 June 2012 were 
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 27 August 2012. 

Synergy came into operation on 1 April 2006 as a result of legislation passed in December 2005 allowing for the 
disaggregation of Western Power Corporation into four separate entities. 

The principal activity of Synergy is to supply electricity to consumers in the South West Interconnected System (SWIS), 
which, extends between Kalbarri, Albany and Kalgoorlie. 

 

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

(a)  Basis of Preparation  

The financial statements constitute general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts, other authoritative 
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of Schedule 4 of the 
Electricity Corporations Act 2005. The financial statements comply with the Australian Accounting Standards, which 
include Australia equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS). 

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical cost basis except for 
financial instruments, which are measured at fair value. 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently applied 
throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated. 

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars 
($’000) unless otherwise stated. 
 

(b)  Reporting Period 

The reporting period is for the year ended 30 June 2012. 
 

(c)  Comparative Amounts 

Financial Performance comparative amounts are for the period 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2011, and Financial Position 
comparative amounts are for the year ended 30 June 2011.  

For comparability the commitments disclosures have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation 
of Collgar Wind Farm as an operating lease. 
 

(d)  Revenue 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to Synergy and the revenue 
can be reliably measured. It is valued at the fair value of the consideration received, or to be received, net of the 
amount of goods and services tax.   

(i)   Sales of Energy 

Sales of energy comprise revenue earned from the provision of electricity, gas and products and services to entities 
outside the economic entity and is recognised when the energy is provided. 

Revenue recognised represents the sum of invoices raised and the movement in the estimated unread energy 
consumption. Unread energy consumption represents the estimated value of metered electricity and gas provided to 
customers but not invoiced. This assessment is based on both historical data and budget data. 

(ii)    Other Income 

Other income comprises revenue earned from the provision of activities incidental to the core activities of Synergy and 
interest income on funds invested. 
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2   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 (e)  Community Service Obligations 

Community Service Obligations (CSOs) are obligations to perform functions, on behalf of the State Government, that 
are not in the commercial interests of Synergy to perform.  Where the Government agrees to reimburse Synergy for the 
cost of CSOs, the entitlement to reimbursement is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a basis 
consistent with the associated CSO expenses.  Synergy is reimbursed for the following CSO’s: 

- Tariff Adjustment Payments; 

- Feed in Tariff rebates; 

- Supply charge rebates; 

- Caravan park rebates; and 

- Air conditioning subsidy for seniors. 
 

 (f)   Cost of Sales 

Cost of sales are those costs directly attributable to the acquisition for sale of energy.  
 

(g)   Current Assets and Current Liabilities 

Current assets and current liabilities are recognised on the basis of assets expected to be realised or consumed, and 
liabilities expected to be settled within twelve months from the reporting date. 

 

 (h)  Financial Instruments 

Synergy has three categories of financial instruments disaggregated into the following classes: 

- Held to Maturity Investments: 

- Financial Assets 

- Available for Sale Financial Assets: 

- Financial Assets 

- Loans and Receivables 

- Receivables 

- Cash and Cash Equivalents 

- Interest bearing Liabilities 

- Payables 

The measurement bases used for each category of financial instruments are disclosed in these notes. 
 

(i)   Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position comprise cash at bank, deposits held at call with 
financial institutions and other short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash.  

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as 
mentioned above. 
 

(j)   Receivables 

Trade receivables, which generally have 20-30 day terms, are recognised at original invoice amount, less a provision for 
any irrecoverable amounts (impairment of receivables). This provision is raised when collection of the full amount is no 
longer probable.   

Collectability of trade and other receivables are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Bad debts are written off against the 
provision when identified.   
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2   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

(k)  Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the 
weighted average cost principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to 
their existing location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 
business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.  
 

(l)    Intangible Assets  

(i)  Computer Software 

Research and Development Costs 

Research costs are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when incurred.  Development expenditure 
incurred is capitalised when Synergy can demonstrate: 

• the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use; 

• its intention to complete and its ability to use the asset; 

• how the asset will generate future economic benefits; 

• the availability of resources to complete the development; and 

•  the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development. 

Development costs include the cost of materials, direct labour and overhead costs that are directly attributable to 
preparing the asset for its intended use.   

Amortisation 

Following the initial recognition of development expenditure the cost model is applied whereby the asset is stated at 
cost less accumulated amortisation.  The expenditure capitalised is amortised over the period of expected benefit from 
the related project.   

The useful life of Synergy’s software is calculated using the straight-line method as follows:  

Class Useful Life 

Computer Software 2.5-10 years 

 

Impairment 

The carrying value of development costs is reviewed for impairment annually when the asset is not yet in use or more 
frequently when an indicator of impairment arises during the reporting period indicating that the carrying value may 
not be recoverable. 

Work-In-Progress 

Work-in-progress is not amortised until the assets are completed. 

(ii)  Renewable Energy Certificates  

The Renewable Energy (Electricity) Act 2000 that took effect on 1 April 2001 requires electricity wholesale purchasers to 
source specified amounts of electricity from Renewable Energy sources.  The Act imposes an annual liability, on a 
calendar year basis, by applying the specified Renewable Power Percentage (for the Large-scale Renewable Energy 
Technology Scheme) and Small-scale Technology Percentage (for the Small-scale Renewable Energy Scheme) to 
relevant wholesale acquisitions.  

The Renewable Energy liability is extinguished by surrender of an equivalent number of Large-scale Generation 
Certificates (LGCs) and Small-scale Technology Certificates (STCs) with a penalty applying for any shortfall.  Synergy’s 
liability is measured at the cost of settling the obligation, being the weighted average cost of LGCs and STCs held at the 
date of surrender. The liability is expensed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.   

Synergy extinguishes its Renewable Energy liability by the surrender of LGCs and STCs that are purchased in the open 
market.  LGCs and STCs purchased from external sources are recognised as an intangible asset at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses.
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2   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

(l)    Intangible Assets (continued) 

Disposal of Intangible Assets 

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the 
continued use of the asset. 

Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset is measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
when the asset is derecognised. 
 

(m)  Prepayments 

Prepaid expenses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the reporting period in which the 
associated benefit is consumed. 
 

(n)  Held to Maturity Investments 

Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed 
maturities that Synergy's management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.  Held to Maturity 
investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs.  After initial recognition they are carried at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
 

(o) Available for Sale Financial Assets 

Available for sale investments are non-derivative financial assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured 
at fair value and changes therein, other than impairment losses, are recognised in other comprehensive income and 
presented in the fair value reserve in equity. When an investment is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss in equity 
is transferred to profit or loss. 
 

(p)  Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.   

(i)  Acquisition of Assets 

The cost method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets.  Cost is determined as the fair value of the asset 
given at the date of acquisition plus costs incidental to the acquisition. 

 (ii)  Depreciation 

Plant and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line method over their remaining useful lives.   

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated 
useful lives of the improvements. 

Plant and equipment held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the assets 
useful life. 

The useful lives of Synergy’s major plant and equipment classes are as follows:  

Class Useful Life 

Plant and Equipment 3.5 – 10 years 

Leasehold Improvements  10 years 

Plant and Equipment under Finance Leases 15 years 

 

Depreciation rates are reviewed annually, and if necessary adjusted to reflect the most recent assessment of the 
useful lives of the assets. 
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

(p)  Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 

 (iii)   Disposal of Assets 

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to 
arise from the continued use of the asset. 

Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of an asset is measured as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the 
asset is derecognised. 

(iv)   Work-In-Progress 

Work-in-progress is not depreciated until the assets are completed. 
 

(q)   Impairment of Assets 

At each reporting date Synergy assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, that is events 
or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.  Where an indicator of impairment 
exists, Synergy makes a formal estimate of recoverable amount.  Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.  Impairment 
losses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Reversals of Impairment 

Impairment losses in respect of receivables is reversed if the subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be 
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. 

Impairment losses in respect of other assets other than those assets held for trading are reversed if there has been a 
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. 
 

(r)  Payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to Synergy as at the end of the reporting period 
that are unpaid.  The amounts are unsecured and the carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as they are settled 
within prescribed periods. 
 

(s)  Leases 

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at 
inception date, whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependant on the use of a specific asset or assets or the 
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. 

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as 
operating leases.  Synergy’s operating lease payments are representative of the pattern of benefits derived from the 
leased assets and accordingly are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the reporting periods in 
which they are incurred.  

Leases where the lessee substantially retains all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.  
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present 
value of the minimum lease payments.  Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction 
of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.  The asset 
acquired under the finance lease is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term.  
 

(t)  National Taxation Equivalent Regime  

Synergy operates under the National Taxation Equivalent Regime (NTER).  Under this regime, tax equivalent payments 
are remitted to the State Treasury; however Synergy’s tax is subject to Australian Taxation Office (ATO) administration.  
The calculation of the liability in respect of these taxes is governed by the Income Tax Administration Acts and the 
NTER guidelines as agreed by the State Government 

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax.  Income tax is recognised in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in 
which case it is recognised in equity. 
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

(t)  National Taxation Equivalent Regime (continued) 

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates enacted or substantially 
enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.   

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.  
The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying 
amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.  

Deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.  Deferred tax assets or liabilities are 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax effects will be realised.   
 

(u)  Goods and Services Tax 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST) except where the 
GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the ATO.  In these circumstances the GST is 
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable. 

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.  The net amount of GST recoverable or payable 
to the ATO is included as part of receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position. 

Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash Flows on a net basis.  The GST component of cash flows arising from 
investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO, are classified as operating cash 
flows. 

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO. 
 

(v)   Provisions 

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and amount. They are recognised when Synergy: 

- has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,  

- it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation, and 

- a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

(i)  Dividends 

A provision for dividends payable is recognised in the reporting period in which the dividends are recommended by the 
Board to the Minister and the Minister in concurrence with the Treasurer accepts the recommendation. 

(ii)  Employee Benefits 

Wages and Salaries and Annual Leave 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and annual leave expected to be settled within 12 
months of the reporting date are recognised in other payables in respect of employees' services up to the reporting 
date and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 

Long Service Leave 

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present 
value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.  
Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of 
service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national government 
securities, which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. 

Termination Benefits 

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when Synergy is demonstrably committed, without realistic 
possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to terminate employment before the normal retirement date. 
Termination benefits for redundancies are recognised by Synergy once a position that has become redundant has been 
identified and the associated costs can be reliably estimated.  
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

(v)  Provisions (continued) 

(iii)  Retirement Benefit Obligations 

All employees of Synergy are entitled to benefits upon retirement, disablement or death from one of many 
superannuation plans, which may include a defined contribution section, a defined benefit section, or both.   The 
defined benefit Scheme is closed to new members. 

Defined Contribution Superannuation Plans 

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
as incurred.   

Defined Benefit Superannuation Plans 

A provision in respect of the defined benefit superannuation plans is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position 
and is measured at the present value of the defined benefit obligations.  This is based on services provided up to the 
reporting date, plus/less unrecognised actuarial gains/losses less the fair value of the superannuation plans’ assets at 
that date and any unrecognised past service cost.   

The present value of the defined benefit obligations is based upon expected future payments and is calculated using 
discounted cash flows consistent with the Projected Unit Credit method. Consideration is given to the expected future 
wages and salaries level, experience of employee departures and periods of service.  Expected future payments are 
discounted using the market yield, as at the reporting date, on selected Commonwealth government securities with 
terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. 

The defined benefit plans consist of the Pension Scheme, and the prior service component of the Gold State Scheme.  
Both of these schemes are wholly unfunded, and Synergy meets the costs of these benefits when the employee leaves 
the service of Synergy.    The current service component of the Gold State Scheme is classified as a defined contribution 
plan, as an annual contribution satisfies Synergy’s obligation in full.   

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial adjustments are recognised 
immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Future taxes are not met by Synergy (the benefit paid is an untaxed amount to the employee) and so no allowance has 
been made for future taxes in measuring the net liability. 

An actuarial review was conducted for the year ended 30 June 2012 using the membership data as at 30 April 2012 as 
it is not expected that the membership data will be materially different as at 30 June 2012. 

(iv)  Onerous Contract 

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits Synergy derives from a particular contract 
are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract.  The provision is measured at the 
present value of the expected net cost of continuing with the contract.    
 

(w)  Interest Bearing Liabilities 

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable 
transaction costs.  After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method.  Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities that are yield 
related are included as part of the carrying amount of the loans and borrowings.   

 
Synergy has both current and non-current interest bearing liabilities in the form of a finance lease. 

(i) Finance Costs 

All finance costs are expensed in the period they occur.  Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity 
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.    

Synergy’s finance costs include 

- Interest on Short Term borrowings 

- Discount Rate adjustment for the movement in present value over time in connection with provisions 

- Finance charges in respect of Finance Leases recognised. 
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)  

(x)  Critical Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. 

(i)  Classification of Leases 

Synergy has considered a number of contractual arrangements in applying the accounting policy. The assessment of 
these contractual arrangements requires a degree of judgement as to whether the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of an asset are substantially transferred to other entities. The classification of a contractual arrangement 
could materially change the Statement of Financial Position of Synergy. 

(ii) Sales of Energy 

A portion of Synergy’s energy revenue is based on the estimated unread energy consumption. Unread energy 
consumption represents the estimated value of metered electricity and gas provided to customers but not invoiced. 
This assessment is based on both historical and budget data. 
 

(y)   Disclosure of Changes in Accounting Policy and Estimates  

In the current year Synergy has adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the 
Australia Accounting Standards Board (the AASB) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current 
annual reporting period. The adoption of these new and revised Standards and Interpretations has not resulted in a 
significant or material change to Synergy’s accounting policies. 

(i)  Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards, applicable to Synergy but not yet operative: 

The following applicable Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations listed below were in issue but not yet 
effective: 

Reference Title Summary Application Date Expected Impact 

AASB 1053 Application 
of Tiers of 
Australian 
Accounting 
Standards 

This standard introduces 
a two tier differential 
reporting regime which 
applies to all entities that 
prepare general purpose 
financial statements.   

1 July 2013 Under AASB 1053 Synergy may have the 
option to adopt a reduced disclosure 
regime if it qualifies as a Tier 2 public 
sector entity. 

There is no expected impact resulting 
from the application of this standard on 
Synergy as it will elect to continue to 
apply Tier 1 reporting requirements for its 
general purpose financial statements.     
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30/06/12 30/06/11

3 REVENUE $'000 $'000

Sales of Energy 2,394,565                  2,358,131                  
Account Fees 20,052                        20,396                        
Product & Services 1,946                          1,674                          

2,416,563                2,380,201                  

4 OTHER REVENUE

Gain on Sale of Non-Current Assets -                              4                                  
Interest 10,063                        8,262                          
Community Service Obligation Revenue 317,308                      282,158                      
Other 2,806                          3,688                          

330,177                    294,112                     

5 COST OF SALES

Energy Purchases 1,471,675                  1,474,292                  
Network Access Costs 894,177                      862,472                      
Renewable Energy Certificates 98,244                        66,291                        

2,464,096                  2,403,055                  

Cost of Sales includes amounts for inventories expensed during the period totalling $6.54m (2011:$3.25m).

6 EXPENSES

Profit before Income Tax Equivalent Expense includes the following specific items:

Employee Benefits Expense
 - Wages and Salaries and Other Related Benefits 39,477                        35,297                        

 - Superannuation Costs 6,089                          4,063                          
45,566                      39,360                       

Finance Costs
- Interest on Short Term Borrowings -                                   28                                
- Unwinding on Discount on Provisions 4,671                           1,152                           
- Finance Lease Interest 4,206                          -                              

8,877                          1,180                          
Materials & Services
- Metering 9,362                          9,737                          
- Administration 28,043                        28,529                        
- Communications 4,007                          3,806                          
- Outsourced Services 25,772                        28,118                        
- Other 9,732                          10,901                        

76,916                      81,091                       
Depreciation & Amortisation
 - Intangible Assets 6,831                          6,458                          
 - Plant and Equipment 1,842                          2,545                          
 - Leasehold Improvements 404                             404                             
 - Plant and Equipment under Finance Leases 4,329                          -

13,406                      9,407                          
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30/06/12 30/06/11
6 EXPENSES (continued) $'000 $'000

Other Expenses
 - Provision for Onerous Contract -                              16,471                        
 - Provision for Impairment of Receivables 11,736                        10,067                        
 - Operating Lease Rentals 2,433                          1,561                          
 - Audit Services - Office of Auditor General 194                             162                             
 - Other 2,547                          1,783                          

16,910                      30,044                       

7 INCOME TAX EQUIVALENT EXPENSE

a. 

Profit Before Income Tax Equivalent Expense 120,969                      110,176                      

Income Tax Calculated at 30% 36,291                        33,053                        

Tax Effect of Non Assessable Differences
 - Other 75                                37                                
Income Tax (Over)/ Under Provided in Prior Years (778)                             765                              
Income Tax Equivalent Expense 35,588                      33,855                       

b. Income Tax Equivalent Expense
The major components of income tax expense are as follows:

Current Income Tax 

 - Current Income Tax Expense 28,748                        44,386                        

 - Income Tax (Over)/ Under Provided in Prior Years (778)                             641                              

Deferred Income Tax

 - Relating to origination and reversal of Temporary Differences 7,618                           (11,296)                       

 - Deferred Income Tax not recognised in Prior Years -                                   124                              
35,588                      33,855                       

c. Deferred Income Tax

 - Increase in Deferred Tax Assets (13,438)                       (13,558)                       
 - Increase in Deferred Tax Liabilities 21,056                        2,386                           

7,618                         (11,172)                      

The (increase)/decrease in Deferred Tax Assets relates to the following:
 - Intangibles -                                   21                                
 - Property plant and equipment (92)                               (122)                             
 - Provisions (2,164)                         (6,015)                         
-  Provision for Impairment of Receivables (1,039)                         (511)                             
 - Leased Assets (18,951)                       -                                   
 - CSO Rebate (1,248)                         1,042                           
 - Other accruals 10,056                        (7,973)                         

(13,438)                       (13,558)                       

The increase/(decrease) in Deferred Tax Liabilities relates to the following:
 - Finance Leases 18,497                        -                                   
 - CSO Rebate (80)                               80                                
 - Other Receivables (349)                             143                              
 - Intangibles 2,988                           2,163                           

21,056                        2,386                           

Numerical reconciliation of income tax equivalent expense to prima 
facie tax payable

Deferred Income Tax relating to origination and reversal of 
Temporary Differences is as follows:
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8 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 30/06/12 30/06/11

$'000 $'000

Cash at Bank 5,889                        6,260                        
Domestic Currency Deposits 207,000                    115,000                    

212,889                    121,260                    

9 RECEIVABLES

Trade Receivables 144,897                    188,024                    
Estimated Value of Unbilled Energy 224,881                    238,000                    
Provision for Impairment of Receivables (8,753)                       (5,289)                       

361,025                    420,735                    

Other Receivables 2,572                        54,975                      
363,597                    475,710                    

a. Provision for Impairment of Receivables

(i) The ageing of trade receivables is as follows:

Not past due 71,768                      105,990                    
Less than 30 days past due ^ 35,245                      41,742                      
30-60 days past due ^ 9,457                        14,177                      
60-90 days past due ^ 5,995                        6,106                        
More than 90 days past due * 22,432                      20,009                      

144,897                    188,024                    

(ii) Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables are as follows:

Opening Balance (5,289)                       (3,586)                       
Provision for impairment recognised during the year (11,736)                     (10,067)                     
Net Receivables written off during the year 8,272                        8,364                        

(8,753)                       (5,289)                       

^ Past due but not impaired
* Includes impaired amounts of $8.753m (2011:$5.289m).  
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10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 30/06/12 30/06/11
$'000 $'000

a. Current
Renewable Energy Certificates 78,795                      44,983                      
Emission Reduction Units 47                              22                              

78,842                      45,005                      

 
 
Reconciliation 

Renewable Energy 
Certificates 

 Emission 
Reduction Units 

Total 

 $'000  $'000 $'000 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2012

Opening Balance as at 1 July 2011 44,983                       22                              45,005                  

Purchase of Intangible Asset 123,516                     55                              123,571                

Surrendered/Applied (89,704)                      (30)                             (89,734)                 

Closing Balance as at 30 June 2012 78,795                       47                              78,842                  

For the Year Ended 30 June 2011

Opening Balance as at 1 July 2010 26,824                       67                              26,891                  

Purchase of Intangible Asset 74,405                       -                                 74,405                  

Surrendered/Applied (56,246)                      (45)                             (56,291)                 

Closing Balance as at 30 June 2011 44,983                       22                              45,005                   
 
 
 

30/06/12 30/06/11
$'000 $'000

b. Non Current
Computer Software 61,748                      55,228                      
Accumulated Amortisation (20,682)                     (13,850)                     
Accumulated Impairment (2,218)                       (2,218)                       

38,848                      39,160                      

 
 
Reconciliation 

 Computer Software  Work in Progress Total 

 $'000  $'000 $'000 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2012
Opening Balance as at 1 July 2011 34,258                          4,902                        39,160                  
Additions / Transfer to Work in Progress 3,738                             6,519                        10,257                  
Disposals / Transfer to Software -                                     (3,738)                       (3,738)                   
Amortisation charge for the year (6,831)                           -                                 (6,831)                   
Closing Balance as at 30 June 2012 31,165                          7,683                        38,848                  

For the Year Ended 30 June 2011
Opening Balance as at 1 July 2010 36,476                          8,197                        44,673                  
Additions / Transfer to Work in Progress 6,784                             3,489                        10,273                  
Disposals / Transfer to Software (2,544)                           (6,784)                       (9,328)                   
Amoritsation charge for the year (6,458)                           -                                 (6,458)                   
Closing Balance as at 30 June 2011 34,258                          4,902                        39,160                   
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11 FINANCIAL ASSETS 30/06/12 30/06/11

$'000 $'000

a. Current Assets
Available for Sale Finacial Investments 5,035                        -                                 
Held-to-Maturity Investments -                                 16,480                      

5,035                        16,480                      

b. Non Current Assets
Held-to-Maturity Investments -                                 12,001                      
Security Deposit 2,372                        2,372                        

2,372                        14,373                      

 
The fair value of Available for Sale Financial Investments and Held-to-Maturity Investments is derived from 
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets. 
 
The security deposit represents the cash deposit held with the Independent Market Operator and is recognised at 
cost with interest earned at prevailing interest rates. 
 
Changes in the fair value of Available for Sale Financial Investments are recognised in other comprehensive 
income and presented in the fair value reserve in equity. As at 30 June 2012, the revaluation amount of current 
Available for Sale Financial Assets sitting in equity is $36,000 (2011:Nil). 
 

 
12 OTHER ASSETS

a. Current Assets
Prepayments 1,468                        1,483                        

1,468                        1,483                        

b. Non Current Assets
Prepayments 21,127                      21,127                      
Other -                                 1,388                        

21,127                      22,515                      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

  
 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2012 
 
 

Electricity Retail Corporation (trading as Synergy) - 18   

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 30/06/12 30/06/11
$'000 $'000

Plant and Equipment
Plant and Equipment - at Cost 14,019                      13,763                      
Accumulated Depreciation (6,481)                       (4,718)                       

7,538                        9,045                        

Leasehold Improvements
Leasehold Improvements - at Cost 4,124                        4,124                        
Accumulated Depreciation (2,019)                       (1,615)                       

2,105                        2,509                        

Leased Plant and Equipment (a)
Leased Plant and Equipment - at Cost 67,095                      -                                 
Accumulated Depreciation (4,329)                       -                                 

62,766                      -                                 

TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 72,409                      11,554                      

 
 

Reconciliation 
 
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment are set out below:   

 
 

Property, Plant 
and Equipment 

Leasehold 
Improvements 

 Leased Plant and 
Equipment 

Total 

 $'000  $'000  $'000 $'000 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2012
Opening Balance as at 1 July 2011 9,045                      2,509                     -                             11,554            
Additions to Property, Plant and Equipment 335                         -                              67,095                  67,430            
Depreciation charge for the year (1,842)                     (404)                       (4,329)                   (6,575)             
Closing Balance as at 30 June 2012 7,538                      2,105                     62,766                  72,409            

For the Year Ended 30 June 2011
Opening Balance as at 1 July 2010 5,254                      2,913                     -                             8,167              
Additions to Property, Plant and Equipment 6,336                      -                              6,336              
Depreciation charge for the year (2,545)                     (404)                       -                             (2,949)             
Closing Balance as at 30 June 2011 9,045                      2,509                     -                             11,554             

 
 

(a) From 1 July 2011, the Emu Downs Wind Farm (EDWF) revised off-take agreement has been classified as a 
finance lease under the provisions of AASB 117 Leases. A corresponding asset and liability of $65.7m has been 
recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at the commencement of the lease term, representing the 
present value of the minimum lease payments under the contract.  Refer to note 17 Finance Lease Liabilities for 
further details. 
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14 PAYABLES 30/06/12 30/06/11
$'000 $'000

Current
Trade Payables 328,784                    354,777                    
Other Payables 25,002                      47,663                      

353,786                    402,440                    

Non Current
Deferred Revenue 7,590                        -                                 

7,590                        -                                 

15 TAX LIABILITIES / ASSETS

a. Current Tax Liabilities
Income Tax Payable 1,376                        24,180                      
Other 114                            114                            

1,490                        24,294                      

b. Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities)
Deferred Tax Assets 39,078                      25,640                      
Deferred Tax Liabilities (23,656)                     (2,600)                       

15,422                      23,040                      

Deferred Tax relates to the following:

(i) Deferred Tax Liabilities  
Finance Lease 18,497                      -                                 
CSO Rebates -                                 80                              
Other Receivables 8                                357                            
Intangibles 5,151                        2,163                        

23,656                      2,600                        

(ii) Deferred Tax Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 488                            396                           
Provision for Impairment of Receivables 2,626                        1,587                        
CSO Rebates 2,686                        1,438                        
Provisions 11,371                      9,207                        
Leased Assets 18,951                      -                                 
Other accruals 2,956                        13,012                      

39,078                      25,640                       
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16 PROVISIONS 30/06/12 30/06/11
$'000 $'000

a. Current Provisions
Employee Benefits 6,179                        4,677                        
Other Provisions 496                            359                            

6,675                        5,036                        

 
Reconciliation 

 Employee Benefits  Other Total 
 $'000  $'000 $'000 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2012
Opening Balance as at 1 July 2011 4,677                           359                 5,036            
Provisions made during year 4,058                           137                 4,195            
Provisions used during year (2,556)                         -                      (2,556)          
Closing Balance as at 30 June 2012 6,179                           496                 6,675            

For the Year Ended 30 June 2011
Opening Balance as at 1 July 2010 3,762                           311                 4,073            
Provisions made during year 4,056                           48                   4,104            
Provisions used during year (3,141)                         -                      (3,141)          
Closing Balance as at 30 June 2011 4,677                           359                 5,036             

 
 

30/06/12 30/06/11
$'000 $'000

b. Non-Current Provisions
Employee Benefits 792                            2,352                        
Retirement Benefit Obligations 8,075                        5,369                        
Onerous Contract 22,294                      17,623                      
Other Provisions 68                              312                            

31,229                      25,656                      

 
Reconciliation 
 
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts for each provision are set out below (Retirement Benefit Obligation 
reconciliation is reported separately under part 16d):  
  

Employee 
Benefits 

Onerous 
Contract  Other Total 

 $'000  $'000  $'000 $'000 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2012
Opening Balance as at 1 July 2011 2,352                     17,623           312               20,287          
Provisions used during year (1,560)                   -                      (244)              (1,804)           
Unwinding and discount rate adjustment -                             4,671             -                    4,671            
Closing Balance as at 30 June 2012 792                        22,294           68                 23,154          

For the Year Ended 30 June 2011

Opening Balance as at 1 July 2010 2,108                     -                      194               2,302            
Provisions made during year 244                        16,471           118               16,833          
Unwinding and discount rate adjustment -                             1,152             -                    1,152            
Closing Balance as at 30 June 2011 2,352                     17,623           312               20,287           

 



 
 

  
 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2012 
 
 

Electricity Retail Corporation (trading as Synergy) - 21   

16    PROVISIONS (continued) 
 
c.     Nature and Timing of Provisions 

 
i)     Employee Benefits 

See note 2(v) for the relevant accounting policy and a discussion of significant estimations and assumptions 
applied in the measurement of employee benefit provisions. 

 
ii) Onerous Contract 

This represents provision for an energy sales contract transferred from Western Power Corporation at the time 
of disaggregation and expiring in 2022.  The pricing in the contract is significantly lower than the average cost 
to supply the energy.  In prior years Synergy was not exposed to the financial effect of this contract, as it 
formed part of vested load under the Vesting Contract with Verve Energy.   Whilst the new bilateral energy 
arrangement with Verve Energy also compensates Synergy for the loss on onerous contract, this arrangement 
expires in 2020 leaving Synergy exposed to losses on the sales contract for the remaining 2.25 years of its term.   
Accordingly, an onerous contract provision has been recognised in the current reporting period representing the 
discounted estimated future loss on supplying the energy under this contract. 

 
    d.      Retirement Benefit Obligations 

Synergy participates in two defined benefit plans which are now closed to new members and are wholly 
unfunded.   

i)  Historical Summary 
30/06/12 30/06/11 30/06/10 30/06/09 30/06/08 30/06/07

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Present Value of Unfunded Obligations 8,075          5,369       4,265       4,406       3,701       3,350       

Experience Adjustments on Plan Liabilities (50)               (20)           (31)           (892)        287          (533)         
 

ii)  Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income (recognised in Employee Benefit 
Expense) 

30/06/12 30/06/11
$'000 $'000

Interest Cost 278                            269                            
Actuarial Losses Recognised 2,761                        137                            
Actuarial Adjustment - Prior Year -                                 735                            

3,039                       1,141                       

 
 
iii)  Reconciliation of movement in the present value of obligations recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Position 

 
Opening Balance 5,369                        4,265                        
Interest Cost 278                            269                            
Actuarial Losses on Liabilities 2,761                        137                            
Actuarial Adjustment - Prior Year -                                 735                            
Benefits paid (333)                          (37)                             

Closing Balance 8,075                        5,369                        

 
iv)  Principal Actuarial Assumptions 

 
Discount Rate 2.8% 5.3%
Expected Future Salary Increases 5.5% 4.5%
Expected Future Pension Increases 2.5% 2.5%  
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17 FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES 30/06/12 30/06/11

$'000 $'000

a. Current Liabilities

Finance Lease Liabilities 2,709                      -                               

2,709                      -                               

b. Non Current Liabilities -                               

Finance Lease Liabilities 60,460                    -                               

60,460                    -                               

 

Lease Payments Interest
Present Value of 
minimum lease 

payments

$'000 $'000 $'000
For the Year Ended 30 June 2012

Within one year 2,709                       4,035                       6,744                       

Later than one year and no later than five years 12,780                     14,197                     26,977                     

After more than five years 47,680                     16,393                     64,073                     

Total 63,169                     34,625                     97,794                     

For the Year Ended 30 June 2011

Within one year -                                 -                                 -                                 

Later than one year and no later than five years -                                 -                                 -                                 

After more than five years -                                 -                                 -                                 

Total -                                -                                -                                 
 

From 1 July 2011, the EDWF revised off-take agreement has been classified as a finance lease under the 
provisions of AASB 117 Leases. A corresponding asset and liability of $65.7m has been recognised in the 
Statement of Financial Position at the commencement of the lease term, representing the present value of the 
minimum lease payments under the contract. The amended EDWF off-take agreements will extend to 2026 (with 
minimum obligations) and to 2030 (without any minimum obligations) and removes the right for any further 
extension. 
 
The total finance lease expense recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended        
30 June 2012 is $4.206m (2011:Nil). 
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18 COMMITMENTS 30/06/12 30/06/11
$'000 $'000

a. Leasing Commitments
Operating Leases

Within one year 127,231                  125,141                  

Later than one year and not later than five years 542,871                  842,343                  

After more than five years 1,468,824               2,126,347               

Total minimum lease payments 2,138,926               3,093,831               

 

Operating leases relate to the purchase of Energy, Capacity and Renewable Energy Certificates with lease terms 
ranging between 10 to 25 years with various suppliers. Synergy also leases the office building under an operating 
lease for an initial lease term of 10 years with Synergy having two options to extend for a further 5 years each.  

 
b. Other Commitments

Intangible Assets

Not later than one year 23,943                    27,131                    

Later than one year and not later than five years 17,315                    19,180                    

Later than five years 28,369                    22,362                    

69,627                    68,673                    

Energy Procurement Contracts

Not later than one year 1,429,213               1,238,519               

Later than one year and not later than five years 6,585,043               6,673,265               

Later than five years 16,688,052            12,349,097            

24,702,308            20,260,881            

Other

Not later than one year 33,275                    27,296                    

Later than one year and not later than five years 18,891                    61,861                    

Later than five years -                               -                               

52,166                    89,157                    

These commitments include the purchase of renewable energy certificates as a result of Synergy's requirement to
source specified amounts of electricity from renewable energy sources as described in Note 2l(ii).

These commitments consist of energy purchase agreements entered into for trading purposes and other related
products.

These commitments relate to commitments for Information Technology and contact centre support services.
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18 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

c. Forecasted Energy Procurement Requirements

30/06/12 30/06/11
$'000 $'000

Not later than one year 1,462,705               1,506,274               

Later than one year and not later than five years 6,701,974               7,974,743               

Later than five years 16,694,208            15,821,267            

24,858,887            25,302,284            

Based on Synergy's forecast demand requirements, the commitments on energy procurement contracts are as follows.

 
 

19  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS 
 

Synergy's policy is to disclose details of contingent liabilities and contingent assets where the probability of 
future payments/receipts is not considered remote, as well as details of contingent liabilities and contingent 
assets, which although considered remote, the Directors of Synergy consider should be disclosed. As at 30 June 
2012 there are no contingent assets or liabilities to be disclosed. 
 
 

    20 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL REMUNERATION 
 

Principles Used to Determine the Nature and Amount of Compensation 

Compensation approval protocols are as follows: 

- Non-Executive Directors: The Minister for Energy approves the compensation of all Non-Executive Directors. 

- Chief Executive Officer: The board, subject to the concurrence of the Minister for Energy, approves the 
compensation of the Chief Executive Officer. 

- Executive Officers: The board determines the remuneration and other terms and conditions of service. 
 

The Compensation policy is designed to: 

- compensate individuals in accordance with performance and responsibility; 

- ensure consistent decision making in individual compensation adjustments; 

- establish flexible compensation arrangements; and 

- establish and maintain salary ranges comparable to other companies of similar size and industry. 
 
Non-Executive Directors 

Payment to specified Non-Executive Directors consists of a base fee and superannuation. 
 

Chief Executive Officer and Executives 

The Chief Executive Officer and executive’s pay and reward framework has the following components: 

- Base pay 

- Selection of prescribed non-financial benefits 

- Superannuation, and 

- An annual at risk remuneration element (2011 financial year).  
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20   KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 
 

At Risk Remuneration 

In the 2011 financial year, Key Management Personnel had specific targets noted in their Service Agreements for 
the At Risk Remuneration (ARR) scheme. The ARR scheme was self funding, therefore the amount of funds 
available depended on the actual net profit after tax (NPAT) exceeding budget. The targets on which the ARR 
element was based are: Financial Performance, Customer Service and Loyalty, Management Dashboard and Cost 
to Serve. No annual at risk remuneration element was included in contracts from 1 July 2011. 

 
Service Agreements 

Trevor James, Chief Executive Officer  

• Term of the Agreement – 2 years commencing from 1st April 2011. 

• Notice period- 26 weeks written notice, or such shorter period as may be agreed, or remuneration in lieu of notice. 

• Termination 

-     Redundancy: should the Minister elect to merge, restructure, or dispose of the business of Synergy, there will 
be a redundancy payment of 50% of annual salary, unless reasonable alternative employment with Synergy is 
obtained. 

-       Poor performance: the lesser of either 13 weeks notice or remainder of the Agreement. 

-       Without notice for serious misconduct. 
 

Geoff Roberts, General Manager, Energy Markets  

• Term of the Agreement – Not a fixed term contract. 

• Notice period- 4 weeks written notice, or such shorter period as may be agreed, or remuneration in lieu of notice. 

• Termination 

- Redundancy: 12 weeks total fixed remuneration in lieu of notice and 3 weeks total fixed remuneration for 
every completed year of continuous service to a maximum of 87 weeks. 

- Incapacity or poor performance: 4 weeks notice, or without notice for serious misconduct. 

-  Other than redundancy, incapacity, poor performance or serious misconduct: 26 weeks notice or 26 weeks 
total fixed remuneration as payment in lieu of notice. 
 

Albert Gauci, Head of Finance and Business Services/CFO 

• Term of the Agreement - Retired 12th July 2011. 

• Notice period - 4 weeks written notice, or such shorter period as may be agreed, or remuneration in lieu of notice. 

• Termination 

- Redundancy: 12 weeks total fixed remuneration in lieu of notice and 3 weeks total fixed remuneration for every 
completed year of continuous service, to a maximum of 87 weeks. 

-  Incapacity or poor performance: 4 weeks notice, or without notice for serious misconduct. 

-  Other than redundancy, incapacity or poor performance: 26 weeks notice or 26 weeks total fixed remuneration as 
payment in lieu of notice. 
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20   KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 
 

Service Agreements (continued) 

Andy Cowin, Acting Head of Finance and Business Services/CFO from 1st July – 7th August 2011 

• Term of the Agreement - Not a fixed term contract 

• Notice period - 4 weeks written notice, or such shorter period as may be agreed, or remuneration in lieu of notice. 

• Termination 

- Redundancy: 4 weeks total fixed remuneration in lieu of notice and 3 weeks total fixed remuneration for every 
completed year of continuous service, to a maximum of 52 weeks. 

-  Incapacity or poor performance: 4 weeks notice, or without notice for serious misconduct. 
 

Karl Matacz, General Manager Business Services and CFO  

• Term of the Agreement - 3 years commencing from 8th August 2011 

• Notice period- 13 weeks written notice, or such shorter period as may be agreed, or remuneration in lieu of 
notice. 

• Termination 

- Redundancy: 13 weeks total fixed remuneration in lieu of notice and 3 weeks total fixed remuneration for 
every completed year of continuous service, to a maximum of 52 weeks. 

- Incapacity or poor performance: 13 weeks notice, or without notice for serious misconduct. 
 

Will Bargmann, General Manager Corporate Services 

• Term of the Agreement - Not a fixed term contract 

• Notice period - 4 weeks written notice, or such shorter period as may be agreed, or remuneration in lieu of 
notice. 

• Termination 

-  Redundancy: 12 weeks total fixed remuneration in lieu of notice and 3 weeks total fixed remuneration for 
every completed year of continuous service, to a maximum of 52 weeks. 

- Incapacity or poor performance: 4 weeks notice, or without notice for serious misconduct. 

- Other than redundancy, incapacity or poor performance: 52 weeks notice or 52 weeks total fixed 
remuneration as payment in lieu of notice. 
 

Blair Stratton, General Manager Strategy and Corporate Affairs  

• Term of the Agreement - 3 years commencing from 23rd May 2011 

• Notice period- 13 weeks written notice, or such shorter period as may be agreed, or remuneration in lieu of 
notice. 

• Termination 

- Redundancy: 13 weeks total fixed remuneration in lieu of notice and 3 weeks total fixed remuneration for 
every completed year of continuous service, to a maximum of 52 weeks. 

- Incapacity or poor performance: 13 weeks notice, or without notice for serious misconduct. 
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20   KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 
 

Service Agreements (continued) 

Donald MacKenzie, General Manager Retail 

• Term of the Agreement – Not a fixed term contract 

• Notice period- 13 weeks written notice, or such shorter period as may be agreed, or remuneration in lieu of 
notice. 

• Termination 

- Redundancy: 13 weeks total fixed remuneration in lieu of notice and 3 weeks total fixed remuneration for 
every completed year of continuous service, to a maximum of 52 weeks. 

- Incapacity or poor performance: 13 weeks notice, or without notice for serious misconduct  

 

Alex Jones, Chief Information Officer 

• Term of the Agreement – 3 years commencing from 1st August 2011. 

• Notice period- 13 weeks written notice, or such shorter period as may be agreed, or remuneration in lieu of 
notice. 

• Termination 

- Redundancy: 13 weeks total fixed remuneration in lieu of notice and 3 weeks total fixed remuneration for 
every completed year of continuous service, to a maximum of 52 weeks. 

- Incapacity or poor performance: 13 weeks notice, or without notice for serious misconduct  
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20     KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 
  
Details of the nature and amount of each element of emolument for Key Management Personnel for the period 1 July 2011 – 30 June 2012 are detailed below:  

Post 
Employment 

Benefits

Salary & Fees Non-Monetary
Consultancy 

Fees
Superannuation 

& Retirement
$ '000 $ '000 $ '000 $ '000 $ '000 $ '000 $ '000

Non-Executive Directors
Michael Smith (Chair) 105                     -                   -                       10                        -                       -                       115                   

Eric Hooper 65                       -                   -                       6                           -                       -                       71                     

Jan Kolbusz ^ 27                       -                   23                        5                           -                       -                       55                     

Eddy Buckovic ** 27                       -                   -                       2                           -                       -                       29                     

Caryle Demarte 50                       -                   -                       5                           -                       -                       55                     

Margaret Seares 50                       -                   -                       5                           -                       -                       55                     

Sub-Total Non-Executive Directors 324                    -                   23                        33                        -                      -                      380                  

Other Key Management Personnel
Trevor James, Chief Executive Officer 398                     -                   -                      7                           -                      -                      405                   

Geoff Roberts, General Manager Energy Markets 319                     -                   -                      29                        -                      -                      348                   

Karl Matacz, General Manager Business Services/CFO * 278                     7                       -                      25                        -                      -                      310                   

Andy Cowin, Acting General Manager Business Services / CFO # 35                       -                   -                      3                           -                      -                      38                     

Alex Jones, Chief Information Officer^^ 256                     -                   -                      23                        -                      -                      279                   

Donald MacKenzie, General Manager Retail ~ 321                     -                   -                      29                        -                      -                      350                   

Blair Stratton, General Manager Strategy & Corporate Affairs 275                     -                   -                      25                        -                      -                      300                   
Will Bargmann, General Manager Corporate Services 288                     -                   -                      26                        -                      -                      314                   

TOTAL 2,494                 7                       23                        200                      -                      -                      2,724               

Superannuation entitlements for members of the Pension Scheme have been revised to reflect the current service cost of the plan measured in accordance with AASB119 Employee Benefits.

 Other Benefits 
 Termination 

Benefits 
Total 

Remuneration

Short Term Benefits

** Eddy Buckovic commenced as Non-Executive Director on 13 December 2011

^ Jan Kolbusz commenced as Non-Executive Director on 13 December 2011

~ Donald McKenzie resigned on 30 June 2012

* Karl Matacz commenced as General Manager Business Services on 8 August 2011

# Andy Cowin was Acting General Manager Business Services to 7 August 2011

^^ Alex Jones commenced as CIO on 1 August 2011
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Details of the nature and amount of each element of emolument for Key Management Personnel for the period 1 July 2010 – 30 June 2011 are detailed below:  
Post 

Employment 
Benefits

Salary & Fees
At Risk 

Remuneration
Non-Monetary

Superannuation 
& Retirement

$ '000 $ '000 $ '000 $ '000 $ '000 $ '000 $ '000

Non-Executive Directors
Michael Smith (Chair) 105                     -                   -                       10                        -                       -                       115                   

Eric Hooper 65                       -                   -                       6                           -                       -                       71                     

Terri Reilly * 19                       -                   -                       2                           -                       -                       21                     

Caryle Demarte 50                       -                   -                       5                           -                       -                       55                     

Margaret Seares ^ 37                       -                   -                       3                           -                       -                       40                     

Sub-Total Non-Executive Directors 276                    -                   -                      26                        -                      -                      302                  

Executive Director
James K Mitchell ~ 425                     -                   -                      26                        -                      -                      451                   

Other Key Management Personnel

Trevor James, Chief Executive Officer ** 90                       -                   -                      2                           -                      -                      92                     

Trevor James, Head of Wholesale ** 240                     -                   -                      -                       -                      -                      240                   

Geoff Roberts, Chief Operating Officer 319                     -                   -                      29                        -                      -                      348                   

Albert Gauci, Head of Finance and Business Services / CFO  # 246                     -                   -                      36                        -                      -                      282                   

Andy Cowin, Acting Head of Finance and Business Services / CFO ## 91                       -                   -                      8                           -                      -                      99                     

Trevor Harvey, Acting Head of Wholesale ^^ 52                       -                   -                      5                           -                      -                      57                     

Donald MacKenzie, Acting Chief Information Officer @ 117                     -                   -                      11                        -                      -                      128                   

Blair Stratton, Head of Strategy and Growth @@ 20                       -                   -                      2                           -                      -                      22                     

Simon Middleton, Acting Head of Strategy and Growth & 206                     -                   -                      19                        -                      -                      225                   

Will Bargmann, Head of Legal, Regulatory & Audit 254                     -                   -                      23                        -                      -                      277                   

TOTAL 2,336                 -                   -                      187                      -                      -                      2,523               

* Terri Reilly resigned from Board on 1 November 2010

Short Term Benefits
Total 

Remuneration

^ Margaret Seares commenced as Non-Executive Director on 21 September 2010

** Trevor James was Head of Wholesale to March 2011.  He commenced as CEO on 1 April 2011

~ James K Mitchell's term as Executive Director expired on 31 March 2011

# Albert Gauci was Head of Finance and Business Services / CFO to February 2011 & Simon Middleton was Acting Head of Strategy and Growth to 23 May 2011

## Andy Cowin commenced as Acting Head of Finance Business Services/CFO on 1 February 2011

^^ Trevor Harvey commenced as Acting Head of Wholesale on 1 April 2011

@ Donald Mackenzie commenced as Acting Chief Information Officer on 7 February 2011

@@ Blair Stratton commenced as Head of Strategy and Growth on 23 May 2011

 Other Benefits 
 Termination 

Benefits 
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21   FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK 

Financial Risk Management – Overview 

Synergy’s Board has overall responsibility for risk management. To assist in fulfilling this role, the Board has 
established an Audit & Legal Compliance Committee (ALCC) and a Treasury Management Committee (TMC). The ALCC 
oversees and monitors Synergy’s treasury activities through the TMC. The Treasury Policy establishes the framework 
for managing financial risks faced by Synergy. Adherence to this policy ensures that, at all times, Synergy maintains 
the appropriate level of control over financial risks to ensure compliance with its strategic core values, as defined in 
the Corporate Strategic Plan.  Synergy’s financial instruments consist mainly of short-term deposits with banks, 
receivables and payables. The main risks Synergy is exposed to are credit, liquidity and market risk. 

a.   Credit Risk       

Credit risk is caused by a counterparty to a financial transaction being unable or unwilling to meet their financial 
obligation resulting in financial loss to Synergy. Synergy’s maximum exposure on current receivables is the carrying 
amount net of provision for impaired receivables. Customers include both domestic and commercial customers who 
are billed and settlement is expected within prescribed settlement terms. 

Synergy’s credit control policies ensures that credit facilities are provided only to business customers with an 
appropriate credit history. The Credit Risk and Debtor Management Committee oversees the credit management 
process and meets monthly to review aged receivables and proposed write-offs. Receivables balances are monitored 
on an ongoing basis by the credit management section. 

In addition, Synergy’s Cash and Cash equivalents must be placed with APRA regulated counterparties that have a 
minimum Standard and Poor’s short-term credit rating of A-1 at the time of investment. Synergy’s Treasury Policy 
allows Synergy to hold investments with counterparties whose credit rating falls up to two notches below A- with 
appropriate approval. Chief Executive Officer approval is required for credit ratings which fall one notch below A-, 
whilst Board approval is required for credit ratings which fall two notches below A-. 

b.   Liquidity Risk 

Synergy’s exposure to liquidity risk arises when it is unable to meet its financial obligations in the course of operating 
as a business. Synergy’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have 
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, without incurring unacceptable losses or other related costs. 
Synergy aims to achieve the optimum level of cash holding, to mitigate the threat of liquidity risk, while maximizing 
the return on available funds. 

Synergy actively manages its working capital requirements through cash flow forecasts to identify expected inflows 
and outflows and has the flexibility to liquidate a portion of its investments in a short time frame, if required. Synergy 
also maintains a short-term funding facility with Western Australia Treasury Corporation (WATC); Bank Guarantee 
Facility with ANZ Banking Group Limited and an Intra Day Credit Accommodation Facility with Commonwealth Bank 
of Australia and these facilities are used by Synergy to manage its liquidity risk.    

The table below reflects the contractual maturity of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments if any.  
These include trade and other payables, and finance lease liabilities. 
 

Carrying 
Amount

1 year or 
less 1 - 2 years 2 - 5 years

More than 5 
years

30/06/12 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Liabilities
Payables 353,786      353,786      -                   -                   -                   
Finance Lease Liabilities 63,169        2,709          2,709          10,071        47,680        
TOTAL 416,955      356,495      2,709          10,071        47,680        

30/06/11
Financial Liabilities
Payables 402,440      402,440      -                   -                   -                   
TOTAL 402,440      402,440      -                   -                   -                   
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21   FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK (CONTINUED) 

c.  Market Risk 

Market Risk relates to fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument fluctuating due to changes in market 
prices and comprises of currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. Synergy’s objective is to manage and 
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters. The market risks to which Synergy is exposed are 
interest rate risk and other price risk.  

d.   Interest Rate Risk    

Interest rate risk reflects the possible exposure to fluctuations in the fair value or future cash flows of Synergy’s 
financial instruments due to adverse movements in interest rates. Synergy’s exposure to changes in interest rates 
relates primarily to its investment portfolio including Cash and Cash Equivalents and Security Deposits, as well as 
short term interest bearing borrowings.     

Synergy invests in short term instruments, allowing Synergy to maximize any favorable movement in interest rates.  

Synergy’s borrowings are obtained from the WATC and are at fixed rates.  All borrowings from WATC are short term, 
with original maturities of less than three months. This reduces Synergy’s exposure to adverse movements in interest 
rates.  There were no outstanding borrowings at 30 June 2012. 

i)  Interest Rate Exposure 

At reporting date Synergy had the following mix of financial assets and liabilities exposed to interest rate risk.   

Within 1 
Year $'000

1-2 Years 
$'000

2-3 Years 
$'000

3-4 Years 
$'000

4-5 Years 
$'000

Over 5 
Years 
$'000

Financial Assets
Cash at Bank 3.81% 5,889          -              5,889          -              -              -            -            -         5,889           
Fixed Term Deposits 4.86% -              207,000     207,000     -              -              -            -            -         207,000      
Available for Sale Investments 5.44% 5,035          -              5,035          -              -              -            -            -         5,035           
Security Deposit 3.58% 2,372          -              2,372          -              -              -            -            -         2,372           
Total Financial Assets 13,296       207,000     220,296     -              -              -            -            -         220,296      

30/06/2011
Financial Assets
Cash at Bank 4.65% 6,260          -              6,260          -              -              -            -            -         6,260           
Fixed Term Deposits 5.26% -              115,000     115,000     -              -              -            -            -         115,000      
Held to Maturity Investments 5.48% 28,481        -              16,480        12,001        -              -            -            -         28,481         
Security Deposit 4.91% 2,372          -              2,372          -              -              -            -            -         2,372           
Total Financial Assets 37,113       115,000     140,112     12,001       -              -            -            -         152,113      

Weighted 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate
Floating 

Rate $'000
Fixed Rate   

$'000

Maturity Date

Total $'00030/06/2012

 

 
ii)  Interest Rate Risk Sensitivity Analysis 

At 30 June 2012 if interest rates had moved as illustrated below, with all other variables held constant, profit and 
equity would have been affected as follows: 

30/06/12 30/06/11
-1% change +1% change -1% change +1% change

Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 212,889     (2,129)         (2,129)         2,129          2,129          121,260     (1,213)       (1,213)       1,213      1,213           
Available for Sale Investments 5,035          (50)               (50)               50                50                -              -                 -                 -              -                    
Held to Maturity Investments -              -                   -                   -                   -                   28,481        (285)           (285)          285         285               
Security Deposit 2,372          (24)               (24)               24                24                2,372          (24)             (24)            24           24                 
TOTAL 220,296     (2,203)         (2,203)         2,203          2,203          152,113      (1,522)       (1,522)       1,522      1,522           

Carrying 
Amount

Carrying 
Amount
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21   FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK (CONTINUED) 

d.   Interest Rate Risk (continued)  

A sensitivity of 100 basis points or 1.0% has been selected for the interest rate risk sensitivity analysis as this depicts 
the anticipated movement in interest rates.  Whilst the global economy has continued its expansion during the past 
year there is still significant uncertainty and volatility in global financial markets due to concerns over banking and 
sovereign debt in Europe and the United States.   

The Reserve Bank of Australia (RBA) has eased tightening over the past year, having reduced the cash rate by 50 basis 
points over this period.  It is expected the RBA will maintain this rate whilst it continues to assess the evolving outlook 
for growth and inflation.     

e.   Other Price Risk    

Other price risk reflects the possible exposure to fluctuations in the fair value or future cash flows of Synergy’s 
financial instruments depending on the financial viability of the underlying corporate issuers. Synergy is exposed to 
fluctuations in the market prices of Available for Sale Financial Assets.  

Synergy’s investment strategy provides guidelines for minimizing price volatility by restricting initial investments to 
issuers that have a minimum Standard and Poor’s short-term credit rating of A-1, and requiring appropriate approval 
to hold investments which fall below this minimum credit criteria.   

At 30 June 2012, if market prices of Synergy’s financial instruments had moved as illustrated below, with all other 
variables held constant, profit and equity would have been affected as follows: 

30/06/12 30/06/11
-5% change +5% change -5% change +5% change

Carrying 
Amount Profit Equity Profit Equity

Carrying 
Amount Profit Equity Profit Equity

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Available for Sale Investments 5,035          (252)            (252)            252              252              -                   -                 -                 -              -                    
Held to Maturity Investments -                  -                   -                   -                   -                   28,481        (1,424)       (1,424)       1,424      1,424           

-                  -                   -                   -                   -                   28,481        (1,424)       (1,424)       1,424      1,424            
 

 
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on the exposure to possible fluctuations in the fair value or 
future cash flows of floating rate notes and fixed rate bonds. The market prices or values of these financial 
instruments are dependent on the financial viability of the underlying corporate issuers at reporting date. The 
financial viability of the corporate issuers is reflected in their credit rating and any upgrade or downgrade by the 
credit rating agencies has a direct impact on the financial instrument’s market price at reporting date.  

A sensitivity of 5% has been selected to measure the possible movement in value at reporting date. In view of the 
fact that Synergy minimises market price volatility by restricting the purchase of investments to issuers that have a 
minimum Standard and Poor’s short term credit rating of A-1, Synergy believes that any movement will be sufficiently 
captured within these parameters.  
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22  RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT AFTER INCOME TAX EQUIVALENT EXPENSE TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

30/06/12 30/06/11
$'000 $'000

Profit After Income Tax Equivalent Expense 85,381                   76,321                    

Add/(less) non-cash items:
    Depreciation 6,575                      2,949                      
    Amortisation - Intangible Assets 6,831                      6,458                      
    Proceeds on Sale of Non Current Assets  - (4)                             
    Unwinding of Discount - Held to Maturity Investments -                              (33)                           
    Non-refundable Capital Contributions 80                           135                          
Change in assets and liabilities:
     Decrease/ (Increase) in Receivables 97,089                   (83,009)                   
     Decrease/ (Increase) in Prepayments 25                           (778)                        
    (Decrease)/ Increase in Payables (26,436)                  88,328                    
     Increase in Employee Provisions 2,542                      2,263                      
     Decrease in Inventories 6,740                      6,967                      
     Increase in Intangibles (33,837)                  (74,357)                   
     Decrease/ (Increase) in Other Assets -                              (1,388)                     
     Increase in Other Provisions 4,671                      17,789                    
     (Increase)/ Decrease in Accrued Interest Receivable (956)                        293                          
     Decrease in Income Taxes Payable (15,185)                  (1,393)                     

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 133,520               40,541                   

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year
Cash at Bank 5,889                      6,260                      
Domestic Currency Deposits 207,000                 115,000                  
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 212,889               121,260                 

 
 

Credit Standby Facilities  

Synergy has a master lending agreement in place with the Western Australian Treasury Corporation.  This agreement 
gives Synergy access to a number of debt facilities with a total limit of $200 million.  

 

23   ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY 

Synergy has a significant economic dependency on energy supply from Electricity Generation Corporation (Verve 
Energy) and networks access charges from Electricity Networks Corporation (Western Power). Synergy also has a 
significant economic dependency on Tariff Adjustment Payments (TAP) from the Western Australian Government.  
TAP revenue subsidizes Synergy for the difference between cost reflective tariffs and the gazetted tariffs Synergy 
charges customers. 

   

24   EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE 

On the 16 August 2012, the Corporation executed an amendment to a Service Level Agreement with the Forest 
Products Commission that allows the procurement of certain carbon permits. This amendment will result in the non-
current prepayment of $21.127 million in Note 12 being classified as a non-current intangible asset in future financial 
years. 

Other than the above, there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year end and the date of 
this report any matter of circumstance likely, in the opinion of the Directors, to affect significantly the operations of 
Synergy, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of Synergy. 
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	(c)  Comparative Amounts
	Operating leases relate to the purchase of Energy, Capacity and Renewable Energy Certificates with lease terms ranging between 10 to 25 years with various suppliers. Synergy also leases the office building under an operating lease for an initial lease term of 10 years with Synergy having two options to extend for a further 5 years each. 
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	-  Incapacity or poor performance: 4 weeks notice, or without notice for serious misconduct.
	 20   KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)





